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strategic overview
VISION
The Board’s vision is the full realisation of constitutional and local democracy in South Africa
characterised by functional and viable municipalities, spatially configured so that its boundaries and wards cover the whole territory of the
Republic, including productive and inclusive
metropolitan municipalities; and sufficiently and
optimally capacitated district and local municipalities which are supported by a sound local
government system.

MISSION
To perform its functions, and to exercise its
powers, in such a manner as to empower
municipalities to fulfil their constitutional obligations; primarily the provision of democratic and
accountable local government, and effective,
efficient and sustainable service delivery within
sound boundaries.

strategic
outcomeorientated
goals
• To determine and re-determine boundaries of
local, district and metropolitan municipalities;
• Delimitation of wards for all local and
metropolitan municipalities for the 2016 local
elections;
• Assessment of the capacity of metropolitan,
district and local municipalities;
• Ensuring good governance and sound financial management;
• Board supported by an effective and efficient
organisation, organisational processes, systems and practices, and
• Good stakeholder relations.

VALUES
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

Accountability
Dedication
Effectiveness
Impartiality
Integrity
Professionalism
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legislative and other

mandates

The Constitution of the Republic of
South Africa, 1996
• The Board is mandated in terms of sections 155(3)(b) and 157(4)(a) to determine
municipal boundaries, and to delimit wards
independently.
Local Government: Municipal Demarcation Act, 1998 (Act No. 27 of 1998)
• Section 3 provides that the Board is a juristic
person, is independent and must be impartial and must perform its function without fear,
favour or prejudice.
• Section 4 provides that the Board must determine municipal boundaries in accordance with
this Act and other appropriate legislation, enacted in terms of Chapter 7 of the Constitution,
and must render an advisory service in respect
of matters provided for in this Act and other appropriate legislation.
Local Government: Municipal Structures Act, 1998 (Act No. 108 of 1998)
• Delimit wards in compliance with Schedule 1 to
the Act.
• In terms of Section 85, the Board must
consider the capacity of district and local
municipalities to perform their function and to
exercise their powers, and provide advice to
MEC’s responsible for local government.
• Section 6 empowers the Board to declare
District Management Areas, and to withdraw
such declarations.
Cabinet resolutions
• In 1998 Cabinet resolved that departmental
service delivery boundaries must be aligned
to constitutional boundaries (national, provincial and local) and should be finalised by departments in consultation with the Municipal
Demarcation Board.

4
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Policy mandates
• Assistance to government departments to
align their service delivery boundaries to
municipal boundaries.
Court rulings
• Although there have been several court
rulings with respect to the decisions of the
Board, none of these rulings have had any
impact on operations or service delivery
obligations.
Reference to the relevant
legislations governing the Board’s
operations
The following legislation is applicable:
• Local Government: Municipal Demarcation Act,
1998 (Act No. 27 of 1998), as amended
• Local Government: Municipal Structures Act ,
1998 (Act No. 117 of 1998)
• Generally Recognised Accepted Practice
• Income Tax Act, 1962 (Act No. 58 of 1962)
• Value-Added Tax Act, 1991 (Act No. 89 of 1991)
• Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No.
1 of 1999), as amended
• Treasury Regulations, March 2005, issued in
terms of the PFMA
• Preferential Procurement Policy Framework
Act, 2000 (Act No. 5 of 2000)
• All practice notes on Supply Chain Management Act
• Employment Equity Act, 1998 (Act No. 55 of
1998)
• Basic Conditions of Employment Act, 1997 (Act
No. 75 of 1997)
• Labour Relations Act, 1998 (Act No. 88 of 1998)
Name of controlling entity
The Municipal Demarcation Board is an independent institution and therefore does not have a controlling entity.

municipal
demarcation
board
organisational structure

Members of the board
Chairperson: Mr Landiwe J Mahlangu
(Full time)

executive
committee
(Exco)

audit and
risk
committee

remuneration
and human
capital
committee

boundaries,
powers and
functions
committee

mdb administration
(Led by Chief Executive Officer:
Ms Gabi C Gumbi-Masilela)

executive MANAGER:
operations and
research
Mr Aluwani Ramagadza

Chief financial
officer
Mr Dzivhuluwani Ligege

executive MANAGER:
corporate service
vacant
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Members of the BOARD

01

03

02

04

Mr LJ Mahlangu
(Chairperson)

Mr AM Adam
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Khosi TJ Ramovha

Ms N Gwayi
(Deputy Chairperson)

05

07

06

08

Prof NC Steytler

Mr LD Tsotetsi

Ms WL Ovens

Ms SGS Castle †

† Deceased
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FOREWORD BY THE

CHAIRPERSON

Mr LJ Mahlangu
Chairperson

The year 2012/2013 is the penultimate year of the
tenure of the current Board. In the last four years
the Board has made significant progress in key
aspects of its mandate and functions. These
included clarifying and simplifying its critical
functions; broadening and strengthening its
stakeholder engagements; re-orientation of
the Board processes towards greater participation, and modernising some of its product
and services to ensure broader appeal and
enhanced quality. Challenges however still
remain, chief among these are institutional
challenges, particularly around governance arrangements, institutional capacities and capabilities. In terms of governance, the Board is of the view that the
current full-time complement of Board members has proven to be clearly inadequate.
The need to intensify stakeholder involvement,
as well as the complexity attendant to the posttransition demarcation requires different skills sets
and more resources. Increasingly, decisions have
to be backed by evidence, which requires well
resourced in-house research capacity.
The 2012/2013 financial year marks another milestone
in the Municipal Demarcation Board’s (MDB) quest
for spatial transformation and democratisation of local government. As was alluded to in our last Annual
Report, the inaugural re-modelled capacity assessment report was released in the period under review,
and has been the subject of discussion and debate by
our various stakeholders. This report not only serves
as a valuable strategic resource for the stakeholders in
local government matters, but fulfils a very important

8

The MDB has been pleased with the response and interest
shown by members of the public, as indicated by the volume
of proposals submitted to the MDB, as well as the attendance,
and level of engagement in the consultations. The Board has every
intention to sustain the ward delimitation process, which will follow
immediately after this process.

input into our decision-making about boundary
re-determination processes, which is underway,
having commenced in the period under review.
The Municipal Structures Act, 1998 (Act No. 117
of 1998) requires the Board to assess the capacities of the municipalities when making boundary
redeterminations. During the period under review, the Board embarked on a revised model of
the capacity assessment and compiled a report
of its findings.
The MDB made a decision that will see the
outer boundary review being implemented to full
effect as outlined in the legislation. To this
end, the MDB has prioritised consultation and
public participation in the process, to complement the formal investigations it has commissioned on the various proposals currently under
consideration. The MDB has been pleased with
the response and interest shown by members
of the public, as indicated by the volume of
proposals submitted to the MDB, as well as
the attendance, and level of engagement in the
consultations. The Board has every intention
to sustain the ward delimitation process, which
will follow immediately after this process.

members for their confirmed, resolute decisionmaking and dedication. The CEO and staff
have once again demonstrated their diligence
and dedication in executing the decisions
of the Board.

Mr Landiwe J Mahlangu
Chairperson

On behalf of the MDB, our gratitude goes to the
Portfolio committee on Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs for their continued
guidance and counsel; the Minister of Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs has also
been a source of insight and guidance in the work
of the Board. I would also like to commend the
Deputy Chairperson and my fellow Board

9

Chief Executive Officer’s overview
Ms GC Gumbi-Masilela
Chief Executive Officer

It gives me great pleasure to present my first Annual Report as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Municipal Demarcation Board. The Board is going
through a challenging but exciting time, where the broader community is beginning to take notice of the work done by the Board; and the organisation in
return is embracing the critical task of creating awareness of its critical work
and taking the engagement with key stakeholders, including communities,
to greater heights. The period under review was characterised equally
by achievements and challenges, as the Board navigates between
high levels of legislative compliance and public participation, to create
a healthy balance in the demarcation process. Notably, the organisation is on its way to operational efficiency in line with the strategic direction taken by the Board at its strategic session held in July 2012.
At this strategic session the Board reaffirmed its strategic focus
on organisational re-engineering, to position itself for effective implementation of its mandate, committing to excellence
and heightened levels of engagement at all levels of stakeholder relations. The Board identified key strategic positions
to drive the efficiencies in the organisation and ultimately
achieve spatial transformation of the country.

10
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The financial control environment of the Board
is guided by high levels of compliance with legislative and
regulatory mandates, and an improved control environment.
The organisation is characterised by conscientious and dedicated
personnel, who put their energy and dedication into executing
the decisions of the Board.

Efficient geo-spatial positioning of all municipalities will allow a greater influence in credible municipal capacity assessment to, not only point out
the deficiencies in municipal skills and capacity,
but assist government to put in place plans to
support and capacitate municipalities to effectively discharge their mandates.
Some of the strategic focus areas identified by
the Board include research and knowledge management, especially during the formal investigations linked to the re-determination of municipal
boundaries, the re-categorization of municipalities and the municipal capacity assessment functions. As one of the lead database management
agencies supporting municipalities, the Municipal
Demarcation Board is expected to keep abreast
of the latest technology and its application.
A final strategic focus area is stakeholder management to heighten the level of engagement
with government, media, business and communities. This requires finesse and a high level of
exposure and understanding of the needs of different stakeholders for engagement purposes.
We are proud to report that, within the limited capacity available and within the requirements of
the law, Board members and staff were efficiently
deployed to all provinces, to consult with MEC’s,
districts and municipalities on all proposals
received by the Board.

launched in October 2012. This will gradually be
administered by the staff as the capacity of the
organisation is built over time.
The financial control environment of the Board is
guided by high levels of compliance with legislative and regulatory mandates, and an improved
control environment. The organisation is characterised by conscientious and dedicated personnel, who put their energy and dedication into executing the decisions of the Board.
I would like to take this opportunity to thank the
Board for their counsel and guidance, and their
dedication through the long hours and travel to
communities far and wide to serve our country
with dedication. I would also llike to thank the
staff for their growth, unwavering support and
readiness and commitment to serve the Board
at all times.

Ms Gabi C Gumbi-Masilela
Chief Executive Officer

The limited financial resources allocated to the
Board were a constraint, but did not limit the
Board from reaching out across the country. The
Board is very proud of the new format of the municipal capacity assessment report, which was

11

Part B

PERFORMANCE information
Statement of responsibility for performance information

F

ollowing the restructuring of the organisation, a number of critical gaps in human capital development were effectively addressed.
The organisational development process
undertaken identified the need for enhanced skills
to address the strategic performance of the organisation. The new structure was developed and the
management echelon filled.
Following the review of the municipal capacity
assessment model, the Board produced the first
report using the newly adopted web-based methodology. This report introduced a new method of
data collection which seems to be much more
sustainable. The Board went further and conducted an in-depth assessment on each of the following
nine districts: Ugu District, Waterberg District, Siyanda District, Fezile Dabi District, Sedibeng District,
Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati District, Gert
Sibande District and West Coast District, Cacadu
District Municipality to determine their powers and functions. This capacity assessment
report was launched in October 2012 and will
be reviewed periodically as the requests for
the shift in powers and functions are received
from various provinces to create efficiency in municipal performance are received from the MEC’s.
As part of the new approach to municipal capacity assessment, the Board’s strategic thrust is to
maintain organisational memory, by developing its
own internal capacity to undertake these capacity assessments within the Municipal Demarcation Board, as opposed to outsourcing the function. This will influence the turnaround time for
MEC’s requests to adjust the powers and functions in their provinces by providing just-in-time
information. There was a lot of media attention
focussed on the outcome: a capacity building
strategy developed by the department of CoGTA to address the gaps outlined by the capacity
assessment report. This process is under way.
The deployment of Board members and staff to
specific provinces to drive public participation and
stakeholder engagement was also formalised to

12
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ensure structured organisational memory and effective engagement with key stakeholders on all
matters falling within the mandate of the Board.
This approach allowed an effective pre-legal process engagement to be as thorough as possible,
based on face to face engagement with the proposers. The week-long process of interrogating
each of the 1 028 proposals per province allowed
the Board enough opportunity to get a deeper understanding of the needs and the implications of
each of the proposals to be taken to the next stage
of the legal process.
A proactive stakeholder engagement plan and
the media engagement strategy were facilitated
to ensure that an awareness plan is rolled out to
reach as many people as possible. Two presentations were made to the Portfolio Committee on
Co-operative Governance and Traditional Affairs,
engagement with all MEC’s took place, requests
for meetings were sent to all provincial Premiers,
and the National House of Traditional Leadership
was extensively engaged.
The legal process undertaken by the Board complied
fully with the requirements of the law in terms of publishing the various notices in various newspapers;
the Board went the extra mile and urged some of
the key partners and stakeholder to ensure that the
information reaches as broad a sector of the communities as possible. In this regard, some provinces
responded more positively than others, and going
forward the Board will work on facilitating this process much more aggressively to ensure fairness and
equity in all provinces. The use of television and radio
stations also added much value to enhanced awareness and dissemination of information to the broader
public on the roles and responsibilities of the Board.
A relationship was built with the print media and
radio stations, as the Section 26 notices were
published in regional newspapers in different languages to ensure a wider reach. Communities
were engaged on the demarcation issues on the
national, regional and local radio stations, mainly

talk-radio stations, to address issues of demarcation, and clarify matters that were raised by various
stakeholders affected by the proposed re-determinations and needing clarification on the impact the
changes would have on the lives of communities.
The Board continues to assist and support various
sector departments such as the Department of Justice and Constitutional Development and the SAPS
to align their boundaries to the municipalities, to ensure seamless service delivery to the communities
without any artificial boundaries being a stumbling
block to the services. The Department of Justice
and Constitutional Development is currently finalising the alignment of the magisterial to municipal
boundaries strategy. These services continue to be
extended to other departments as they are requested, despite the Board’s limited capacity.
The Municipal Demarcation Board continues to
provide services such as GIS, maps of municipalities to all citizens and business people for various
purposes, and it also continues to support other
state agencies such as the municipalities, IEC,
STATS SA, transport agencies and others with information required for planning purposes. This capability will be further enhanced to excell the MDB.

CHALLENGES
While the Board feels confident about the achievements of the year under review, there were a number of challenges that highlighted several areas
that need to be enhanced in the overall performance of the Board in executing the strategic plan
and the annual performance plan.
Among the challenges experienced were the lack of
adequate capacity within the Board to undertake the
strategic work required, which resulted in the Board
outsourcing a lot of functions and losing organisational memory in the process. The Board is currently engaged in extensive structured training programmes
to improve its internal capacity and sharpen the in-

ternal skills. However, the numbers remain an issue
with only 30 staff employed by the Board.
The long-term view of the Board is to undertake
the municipal capacity assessments for all municipalities internally, which will allow the organisation the opportunity to review the information as
frequently as possible, including assessments of
all municipal proposals for the re-determination of
the boundaries. Currently this work is undertaken
externally and the timeframes for delivery are not
met as required, creating performance challenges.
Limited resources for stakeholder management,
public participation and communications within the
Board also created challenges, limiting the extent
to which the Board could reach communities and
create awareness in different communities in the
country. The part-time Board members were also
not always available to engage with communities
and other major stakeholder during certain times
and this created its own challenges.
Lack of the research capacity also forces the
Board to outsource all research work, depriving the organisation of its ability to test certain
theories more cost-effectively and within shorter
timeframes. going forward this capability will be
prioritised.
To address all these challenges the Board has repositioned itself and will be focusing on enhancing
the limited capacity and skills, by securing additional manpower to ensure that the mandate is effectively discharged. Some of the strategies have
been accommodated in the new strategic plan and
will be implemented as effectively as possible.

Ms Gabi C Gumbi-Masilela
Chief Executive Officer
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auditor’s report
Predetermined objectives

The AGSA currently performs the necessary audit procedures on the performance information to
provide reasonable assurance in the form of an audit conclusion. The audit conclusion on the
performance against predetermined objective is included in the report to management. Where applicable, material findings are reported under the Predetermined Objectives heading in the Report on other
legal and regulatory requirements section of the auditor’s report.
Refer to page 44, the Report of the Auditor-General, published as part of Part E: Financial Information.
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overview of
operations AND RESEARCH
0

01 – Head: Determination and Delimitation – Mr Fazel Hoosen • 02 – Executive Manager: Mr Aluwani Ramagadza
03 – Acting Head GIS & Database Management: Ms Hester Marais 04 – Ms Ayanda Monkhe • 05 – Mr Mthobisi Manzini
06 – Mr Kamal Khadua • 07 – Mr Thabiso Plank 08 – Ms Nangomso Jacobs • 09 – Ms Liz Mazibuko • 10 – Mr Shane Athmaram

3.1. Service delivery
environment
The primary areas of performance for the
period were:
• On-going review of municipal boundaries;
• On-going assessment of municipal capacity;
• Re-organisation of the institutional administrative structures;
• Enhancement of stakeholder relations and
communications;
• Enhancement of operations through national
and international studies;
• Maintenance and improvement of governance
structures;
• On-going compliance with relevant legislative
and regulatory requirements.

a. On-going review of
municipal boundaries

The Board continued with the programme for
municipal boundary re-determinations which
commenced in 2011/2012.
The programme required that the review
process be completed by October 2013 to allow
for the process of ward delimitation to commence
in preparation for the 2016 local government
elections (Table 1).
Specifically, the boundary re-determination process started directly after the May 2011 local
elections. The initial consultation process was
undertaken with the 44 district municipalities and
eight metropolitan municipalities during August/
September 2011 to discuss submissions re-

15
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Broad process and timeframes within
current legal framework: 2011 – 2016

Prepare for local
elections

Delimit wards
Re-determine
municipal boundaries

2011

2012

2013

2013

2014

2015

2015

2016

Consultation and legal process

Consultation and legal process

IEC process

June 2011 – Oct 2013

Nov 2013 – June 2015

July 2015 – April 2016

Table 1: Timelines for the determination/redetermination and ward delimitation processes.

ceived up to that stage. During these meetings
stakeholders were also requested to submit any
new requests for boundary changes, and time
was allowed for these until 15 December 2012, a
date that was extended to 20 January 2013.
The second set of district/metropolitan municipality meetings were scheduled during May/June
2012, discussing submissions received after the
20 January 2013 closing date.
Additionally, circulars sent to municipal managers offices did not seem to reach councillors
and communities as intended, using existing municipal structures.

A total of 1 028 cases were received. Reasons
for the 824 rejection cases included:
Reason 1: Cases which have been consolidated:
• The matter has been addressed under a different DEM, as published in terms of Section 26 in
newspapers circulating in their area.
Reason 2: Proposal to align to magisterial boundary:
• The matter could not be considered since
the Department of Justice and Constitutional
Development is in the process of aligning the
magisterial boundaries to the current municipal
boundaries, as per the Cabinet resolution of
1998.
Reason 3: No stakeholder support:
• The matter could not be considered since all affected stakeholders were not in support of the
proposal.
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Reason 4: No compliance with legislation:
• The matter could not be considered since the
proposal did not meet the legislative criteria in
terms of the MDB Act and/or Structures Act.
During and after the district/metropolitan municipality meetings, requests were also received for
some local municipality meetings and affected
community meetings. In total, 166 meetings
took place in the different provinces in South
Africa. These meetings also included visits to key
stakeholders such as MECs, SALGA, IEC
and Houses of Traditional Leaders in the
different provinces, as well as ordinary communities who applied directly.
A challenge was experienced in that during most
of the meetings, attendees were not able to provide direct support/objection to a proposal and indicated that they would have to come back to the
Board with feedback after the meeting. In most
provinces such as Eastern Cape this feedback
was not received, limiting the Board’s ability to
process the cases.
After consideration of the views received
during the aforementioned district/metropolitan
municipality and local municipality/community
consultation meetings, the Board resolved to
publish a Section 26 notice on 204 of the 1 028
initial cases in November 2012.
A period of 30 days was allowed for views and representations in November/December 2012 which
allowed stakeholders or anyone from the
public to provide the Board with feedback for
consideration towards Section 26 decisionmaking.
After processing the Section 26 views and
representations, the Board resolved in February
2013 to close 22 of the 204 published cases and
102 cases was ready to proceed to a Section 21
publication preceding the final decision at the
Board during the course of the new financial year.

It was further resolved to investigate some 80
of the 204 cases, some minor and others major,
before a decision could be made towards
Section 21 publication preceeding the final decision of the Boad during the course of the new
financial year.
Short time frames were a challenge in publishing the Section 27 notifications for major
investigations and public meetings, and at times
meetings could not take place as intended, due to
local disorganization and poor logistical arrangements by our stakeholders who were assisting us
with this process.

Alignment of national service
delivery department boundaries to
municipal boundaries

The Municipal Demarcation Board is mandated
to serve as an advisor to service delivery departments like the Department of Justice and Constitutional Development, Department of Health,
Department of Education, Department of Home
Affairs and the South African Police Services in
the alignment of their boundaries to municipal
boundaries.
The Department of Justice and Constitutional
Development produced a set of draft magisterial
district boundaries aligned to municipal boundaries in 2010/2011. During 2012/2013, these draft
boundaries were circulated to all their internal
stakeholders to solicit their views. The Municipal
Demarcation Board accompanied the department on some consultation meetings with various
internal stakeholders, and was instrumental in the
technical amendments of the draft boundaries and
maps in line with input received. Amendments
were made to the draft magisterial districts in Mpumalanga, North West and Gauteng.
The Municipal Demarcation Board was also called
upon to assist the department in the creation and
mapping of 17 new areas of jurisdiction for sheriffs,
as well as the creation and mapping of areas of
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jurisdiction of several branch courts for proclamation, improving access to critical services for the
citizens.
The Constitution Twelfth Amendment Act 2006
and Constitution Sixteenth Amendment Act 2009
which changed some provincial boundaries in
the country, resulted in several magisterial district boundaries transgressing provincial boundaries. The Municipal Demarcation Board assisted
the department in consulting their affected internal stakeholders and redrawing the affected
magisterial districts to align to the provincial
boundaries. This was done for the magisterial
districts affected by the Limpopo/Mpumalanga
provincial boundary.
Apart from the Department of Justice and
Constitutional Development and the South
African Police Services, all other service delivery departments have aligned their boundaries to
municipal boundaries. National service delivery
departments are represented on the Municipal
Demarcation Boards’ Boundaries, Powers and
Functions Committee, and are kept abreast of
developments around the re-determination of
municipal boundaries.

b. On-going assessment of
municipal capacity

A new and revised approach to capacity assessment was adopted, that yielded assessments
that will be instrumental in assisting national, provincial and local government to enhance the performance of functions by municipalities for better
service delivery to communities. Given that this
new approach exists in an environment where
local government is under extreme pressure to
perform better, there are likely to be challenges
in the realising the desired results. The project
was outsourced, with provision for internal capacity building. The Board’s desire to increasingly have the assessment performed internally
remains.
During the review period, the Municipal
Demarcation Board for the first time conducted
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its municipal capacity assessment within the
context of three interdependent, but key local
government performance barriers:
• where a municipality finds itself representative
of the socio-geographic and legacy factors that
constrains the ability of a municipality to perform;
• constrained capacity which includes resources
such as staff and finances, skills and competencies, systems and processes, and
• where there were leadership and governance
challenges, both of which played a significant
role in determining the ability of a municipality
to perform well.
This year’s conceptualisation of the capacity assessment arises from significant improvements
to the methodology and the analytical tools used,
as suggested in a review of the MDB’s capacity
assessment model undertaken in 2010. The end
result being, the following;
•

National analytical report: The report draws
an analysis of trends in municipal capacity
across different categories of municipalities,
municipalities in different provinces, and over
time where the data is comparable. The findings are invaluable to policy makers and national government officials needing an analysis across all municipalities in the country.
In addition, the report is accompanied by a
comprehensive user-friendly database, hosted on the internet, that provides a resource for
officials, councillors and researchers in the
local government sector to run customised
queries and analysis.
A suite of other reports were made available
that reflect other purposes and accommodates other audiences:

• A municipal comparison report: for use by a
municipality to compare their capacity trends,
in general and for each function, with municipalities in the same category. This is generated for each municipality independently.

overview of operations AND RESEARCH

Sources of information
Sources of
information/type
of information
Financial
information

Source

Local government budget
and expenditure database
(pre-audit)

Year

2010/2011

Custodian

National
Treasury

Water services

Blue drop and green reports

performance

for water services authorities

Audit information

Municipal audit findings

2010/2011

Staffing

Completed MDB Municipal
Capacity Assessment Questionnaires

Municipal
2010/2011 Demarcation
Board

Demographic
information

Community survey

2007

• A district-level report card: for any reader
wanting an analysis of the distribution of capacity within a district, among all local municipalities and the district municipality. This is automatically generated for each district family.
• An in-depth qualitative assessment report
for nine districts: nine districts, one in each
province, were selected for an in-depth analysis of the application of capacity to three prioritised functions. The reports for each of these
districts reflects the current arrangements for
delivering fire services, roads and solid waste
services and assesses the merits of considering MEC adjustments.
As a marked difference from past methodologies,
this year’s capacity assessment relied on a range
of already-collected information on municipalities,
held by national departments, as well as data collected from municipalities.

2010/2011

Department of
Water Affairs

Coverage

All municipalities
All water
services
authorities
and others

Office of the
All municipalities
Auditor-General

Statistics
South Africa

All but seven
municipalities
participated
All municipalities

The revised approach to assessing capacity has
produced a wealth of data and analysis, including trends in capacity across provinces, different
municipal categories that help to describe the
capacity of local government and its many
successes and challenges.

Challenges faced during this project

The introduction of an online questionnaire posed
initial challenges, forcing the service provider to
assist municipalities telephonically. More support
will be afforded to municipalities with low IT
capacity challenges.

c. Enhancement of
stakeholder relations and
communication

The review indicated a need for enhancement of
key strategic areas, such as the appointment of a
stakeholder relations manager to ensure effective
stakeholder engagement; a communications unit
to improve both internal and external communication, public relations and awareness of the performance role and responsibilities of the Board.
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The following form part of the MDB guiding
principles that relate to public participation:
• Proactivity: taking the initiative to reach communities on the ground.
• Inclusiveness and openness: allowing the
broader public to engage and express their
views directly to the Board.
• Access: promoting accessibility of the Board
to all those who desire to make presentations
of, at times, differing views and opinions.
• Transparency: allowing the boundary redetermination process to be crystal clear to the
affected communities.
• Respect: constant appraisals and information
to the public about the Board’s decisions.
The following stakeholders play an important role
in assisting the MDB to reach its objectives and
goals of plausible public participation in terms
of Section 26 of the Municipal Demarcation Act,
1998 (Act No. 27 of 1998):
• The MEC responsible for local government in
relevant provinces;
• SALGA;
• Magistrate, if any magisterial districts are
affected;
• Provincial House of Traditional Leaders;
• Affected municipalities.
Others
• All municipalities: mayors, municipal managers and speaker’s office;
• Ward councillors and committees;
• Community development workers;
• Non-governmental organisations and interests
groups.
Communications with stakeholders to inform
them of the processes of the MDB, which were
disseminated to all provinces through various in-
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formation circulars:
Circular 2/2012 contained:
• Revised timeframes for the redetermination of
outer bounadries;
• Commencement of the legal process;
• Reminder to submit motivation and other pertinent outstanding information in respect of
submission and proposals.
Circular 3/2012 contained:
• Notice informing stakeholders about newspapers containing the Section 26 notices published in November 2012;
• An invitation to stakeholders to give views and
representations, before the deadline of 10 December 2012.
Since the start of the re-determination process,
public participation engagements have taken
place nationally, with 166 visits in total to the various stakeholders mentioned above.
Specifically 26 visits were conducted in the Eastern Cape, 15 visits in the Free State, 16 visits in
Gauteng, 44 visits in KwaZulu Natal, 16 visits in
Limpopo, 14 visits in Mpumalanga, 10 visits to the
North West, 17 visits in the Northern Cape and 8
visits in the Western Cape.

d. Enhancement of operations
through national and
international studies
The Board, at the strategic planning session in
July 2012, reviewed and approved a new organisational structure and it was implemented.
A Research unit was established in the organisational structure to manage the research and the
internal municipal capacity assessment to ensure
enhanced quality and efficiency. Recruitment
processes are underway to appoint a Head and
staff for this unit to reposition the Board’s vision.

overview of operations AND RESEARCH

e. Maintenance and
improvement of
governance structures

A Head was appointed to the Legal and Board
Secretariat unit in January 2013. This was prioritised to strengthen good governance. The Board
Charter and the Code of Conduct were drafted
and are currently being refined by legal experts
for compliance with King Principles.

f. On-going compliance with
relevant legislative and
regulatory requirements

Compliance to legal provisions remain the
cornerstone of the Board as an organ of the
state. Throughout the year, the Board and its
committees provided oversight into compliance
with laws and regulations.

3.2. Organisational
environment
Re-organisation of the institutional
administrative structures

The process that was started by the Board to significantly restructure the organisation and change
the way things are done in a number of core
work areas, was continued during the period.
The Board’s intention was to implement a new
organisational structure at the beginning of the
financial year and the process of appointing staff
to new key positions is underway pending the review of the financial position of the Board.

3.3. Key policy developments
and legislative changes
The Board does not have the power to review
legislation.
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3.4. Strategic outcome-oriented goals
Strategic objective

To determine and re-determine boundaries of local, district and
metropolitan municipalities.

Objective
statement

• Plan and implement a process to finalise 100% of proposals for
redetermination received, or initiated, in terms of Section 22 of the Municipal
Demarcation Act, 1998 (Act No. 27 of 1998), by 2013.
• The process will include different phases: planning, consultation, compliance
to legal provisions, and the finalisation of all changes to municipal boundaries
during 2013.
• Action 100% of processes to ensure that municipalities qualifying for metro
status, or indeed become metros on the date of the next local government
elections in line with sections 21, 24, 25, 27 and 28 of the Municipal
Demarcation Act, 1998 (Act No. 27 of 1998).
• Advise service delivery departments of changes to municipal boundaries.
• Declaration and withdrawal of district management areas where applicable.

Strategic objective

Delimitation of wards for all local and metropolitan municipalities for the
2016 local elections.

Objective
statement

• Plan and implement a process to delimit wards in 100% of local and
metropolitan municipalities by mid-2015 in terms of Schedule 1 to the
Local Government: Municipal Structures Act, 1998.
• The process will include different phases: planning, consultation, compliance
to legal provisions, and the finalisation of all wards for the 2016 local elections.

Strategic objective

Assessment of the capacity of metropolitan, district and local
municipalities.

Objective
statement

• Deliver a capacity assessment report.
• Provide quality municipal capacity assessment reports and recommendations
to MEC’s for local government regarding adjustments of powers and functions
in compliance with Section 85 of the Local Government Municipal Structures
Act, 1998.

Strategic objective Ensuring good governance and sound financial management.
Objective
statement

• Manage resources to accomplish strategic goals; effective financial planning,
adherence to laws, regulations and contractual obligations; and effective,
efficient use of resources.
• Compliance with legal frameworks.
• Improve efficiency and effectiveness of administrative processes and systems.

Strategic objective

Board supported by effective and efficient organisation, organisational
processes, systems and practices.

Objective
statement

• Implement the outcomes of the Organisational Development Initiative (OD).
• Monitor individual performance contracts that support strategic objectives.
• Maintain an internship programme to mitigate risks associated with staff turnover.
• Maintain acceptable employee satisfaction levels.
• Develop and nurture capability at all levels within the Board.
• Comply with employment equity legislation.

Strategic objective Stakeholder relations
Objective
statement
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• Stakeholder management function to drive strategies and implement plans of
the MDB.
• Participation in joint structures and initiatives aimed at deepening democracy
at a community level.
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Performance information
BY programme

4.1. Programme 1:
Operations and Research
Provides management of all processes in pursuit of the legislative mandate of the Municipal
Demarcation Board, and includes:
• Determination and re-determination of municipal boundaries;
• Appropriate categorisation of municipalities,
• Advisory service on the alignment of service
delivery boundaries, to municipal boundaries;
• Declaration and withdrawal of declarations of
district management areas;
• Delimitation of municipal wards for local
government elections; and
• Oversee the process to assess the capacity of municipalities to perform their functions,
and render advice to MEC’s to adjust powers
and functions between district and local
municipalities.
A total of 1 028 cases were received to be
processed up until the closing date for submissions on 20 January 2012. In total 225 cases were
processed for the Eastern Cape, 86 cases for the
Free State, 85 cases in Gauteng, 276 cases for
KwaZulu Natal, 99 cases for Limpopo, 74 cases
for Mpumalanga, 63 cases for the North West,
39 cases for the Northern Cape and 81 cases for
the Western Cape.
From the 1 028 cases processed, 824 cases were
rejected after intensive evaluation towards meeting the Municipal Demarcation Act, 1998 (Act No.
27 of 1998), Section 24 and Section 25 criteria.
During consideration of the 1 028 cases, public
participation visits were done with a total of 166
meetings in the different provinces in South Africa.
A Section 26 notice was published in November 2012 with the following breakdown: 37 cases for the Eastern Cape; 10 cases for the Free
State; 4 cases for Gauteng; 49 cases for KwaZulu-Natal; 13 cases for Limpopo; 6 cases in
Mpumalanga; 25 cases for North West; 21 cas-

es for the Northern Cape; and 39 cases for the
Western Cape. A total of 530 views and representations were received for 126 of the 204 Section
26 cases published.
The Board resolved, in February 2013, to close
22 of the 204 published cases and 102 cases was ready to proceed with a Section 21
publication. It was further resolved to investigate
some 80 of the 204 cases (47 minor cases and
other 33 major cases) before a decision could be
made towards Section 21 publication.
The 47 minor investigation cases were internally
investigated by staff and/Board members, with
some cases requiring meeting with the affected
community, while other cases could be resolved
through desktop analysis and written feedback
received from affected stakeholders. Finally 33
cases required a major investigation and/or public
meeting, which were published as such in terms
of Section 27 and were undertaken by private service providers.

4.2. Programme 2:
Financial Management
and Accounting
Provides policy leadership, advice and core support services, including:
• Financial management;
• Financial Reporting;
• Supply chain management; and
• Risk management.

4.3. Programme 3:
Corporate Services
• Human resources and administration;
• Legal and Board secretariat;
• Information and management services, including IT;
• Communication and stakeholder management;
• Corporate planning; and
• Project management.
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Plan and implement a process
to finalise 100% of requests
received, or initiated, in terms
ACTIVITY/OUTPUT
of Section
22 of the Municipal
Demarcation Act, 1998 (Act No.
27 of 1998), by 2013.

ACTIVITY/OUTPUT

processes, systems and
practices

Board supported by
effective and efficient
processes,
systems
Board supported
by
and
practices.
effective and efficient

Good governance

Good governance

Ensure sound financial
management

Workforce composition (Race)

Training and development

Workforce composition (Gender)

Conduct employee satisfaction
surveys

Carry out assessment of indiTraining
and development
vidual performance

Conduct
employee
satisfaction
Implement
outcomes
of the OD
surveys

Frequency of review of policies
and procedures
Carry out assessment of individual performance

Audit Opinion
by the of
AG
Implement
outcomes
the OD

100%

33%

Unqualified
31
Dec 2012

Performance agreements, quarterly
targets and
finalised
Unqualified
auditPDP’s
opinion
and signed by all staff members
by
31 December
30.3%
of policies2012
were revised
and or developed

30.3%
of policies
were revised
82% actual
expenditure
to
and/or
developed
revenue
received

Unqualified audit opinion

82% actual expenditure to
revenue
received
2.6 average
internal audit rating

100%

Current ratio of 10: 1
2.6 average internal audit rating

85% = commission investigations and/or public hearings
100%

Current ratio of 10: 1

Percentage of staff
Percentage of emcomplement that
100%
ployees assessed 60%
attended training
per
year of surveys
Number
Two surveys
conducted
Percentage of staff
complement
Percentage who
of staff 55%
iscomplement
female
that
60%
attended training
Percentage of staff
per year
70%
complement who
is HDI

Achieved
Achieved

90% of employees are HDI

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved
Achieved

Achieved
Achieved

Achieved

Partially
achieved

Achieved
Achieved

Partially
Partially
achieved
achieved

Achieved

Partially
Partially
achieved
achieved

Achieved

Achieved
Partially
achieved

Achieved
Achieved

Achieved

ACHIEVED,
PARTIALLY
Achieved
ACHIEVED
OR NOT
ACHIEVED

ACHIEVED,
PARTIALLY
ACHIEVED
OR NOT
ACHIEVED

67%

57% of employees are females

Two surveys conducted during
the year

100%
67%

100%
Performance agreements, quarCompletion date of
terly targets and PDP’s finalised
Number of surveys
31 Dec 2012 Two surveys conducted during
Two surveys
deliverables
and signed by all staff members
conducted
the year
by 31 December 2012

Percentage of employees assessed

Unqualified

Audit opinion by the AG
33%
95%

95%
2

Actual expenditure to revenue
received
Internal Audit rating

100%

85%
100%

02:01

Budget expenditure to budget
income

Frequency
of review to
of revenue
policies
Actual expenditure
and
procedures
received

PERFORMANCE RESULTS
AGAINST ANNUAL TARGET

ANNUAL
85%
= commission investigaTARGET
PERFORMANCE
RESULTS
85%
and/or public
hearings
(Outline the tions
AGAINST
ANNUAL
TARGET
percentage)

ANNUAL
TARGET
(Outline the
percentage)

02:01
2

Completion date of
deliverables

KEY
PERFORMANCE
INDICATOR

KEY
PERFORMANCE
INDICATOR

Current ratio
Internal Audit rating

Plan and
implement a process
Current
ratio
To
determine
Ensure
soundand reto finalise 100% of requests
determine
boundaries of
financial management
received, or initiated, in terms of
local, district and metro- Budget expenditure to budget
Section 22 of the Demarcation
income
politan municipalities
Act, 1998, by 2013.

To determine and redetermine boundaries
STRATEGIC
of
local, districtOBJECand
TIVEmunicimetropolitan
palities

STRATEGIC
OBJECTIVE

performance results against predetermined objectives

PROGRAMME PROGRAMME

None

None

None

None

None
None

None
None

None

Scheduled to be tabled at next Audit Committee meeting on 23 May 2013

None
None

None
Expenditure is 13% below target due to timing difference between the demarcation procScheduled to be tabled at next Audit Commitess and the financial year. Moreover, income
tee meeting on 23 May 2013.
other than government grants amounting to
R611 000 constituted 1.5% of total revenue.

Expenditure is 13% below target due to timing
difference
between
demarcation
procThe overall
controlthe
environment
of the
entity
ess
and the financial
year. Moreover,
is adequate
and effective,
except forincome
signifiother
government
grants
amounting
cant than
control
inefficiencies
to be
correctedtodue
R611
000 constituted
1.5%and
of total
revenue.
to changes
in processes
resources.

The overall control environment of the entity is
The ratio is above the target due to retained
adequate and effective, except for significant
surpluses over the years
control inefficiencies to be corrected due to
changes in processes and resources.
None

None
None

The ratio is above the target due to retained
surpluses over the years.

None
VARIANCE AGAINST ANNUAL TARGET

VARIANCE AGAINST ANNUAL TARGET
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PROGRAMME

Training and development

Carry out assessment of individual performance
Workforceof
composition
(Race)
Frequency
review satisfaction
of policies
Conduct employee
and
procedures
surveys
ACTIVITY/OUTPUT

Workforce composition (Gender)

Stakeholder relations

Board supported by
effective and efficient
processes, systems and
practices

Good governance

Good governance
Stakeholder relations

Ensure
soundrelations
financial
Stakeholder
management
85%
75%
100%

02:01

70%

70%

Percentage of staff
complement who

is female

75%

60%

Workforce composition (Race)

Training and development

55%

75%

Two surveys

Number/percentage of meetings/engagements attended
Workforce composition (Gender)

Number of surveys
conducted

85%
- the
30.3%
of stakeholder
policies wererelations
revised
strategy
was
implemented sucand or developed
cessfully throughout the year
2.6 average
internal audit
rating
70%
- implementation
of the
registry
module
completed
85% - the stakeholder engagement plan was implemented
successfully
throughout relations
the year
85% - the stakeholder

Current ratio of 10: 1
Partially
achieved - Head:
70%
- implementation
of theLegal
and Secretariat
appointed in
registry
module completed
January
100% 2013.

90% of employees are HDI

30.3% of policies were revised
and or developed
Partially
- Head:
Legal
57% of achieved
employees
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85%
= commission
investigaand
Secretariat
appointed
in
tions and/or
January
2013.public hearings
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Partially
Achieved
achieved
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ACHIEVED
Achieved
OR NOT
ACHIEVED
Appointment
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Head:
Stakeholder
Achieved
and
Media
Achieved
relations has
not been
finalised
Achieved
Appointment
of
Head:
Achieved
Stakeholder
Partially
and Media
achieved
relations
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not been
finalised
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Achieved
achieved
Partially
Partially
achieved
achieved
Achieved

Achieved

Achieved

90% of employees are HDI

Two surveys conducted during
85%
- the stakeholder commuthe year
nication strategy was implemented successfully throughout
the year
67%
75% - various meetings/engagements with stakeholder attended by Chairperson, Deputy
Chairperson,
Boardare
members
57% of employees
females
and/or CEO
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Achieved

Achieved
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2013.
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Percentage of
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33%
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all staff members
75%
- various
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stakeholder
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successfully
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Percentage of all
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33%
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85%
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75%

Percentage of
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Percentage of staff
complement who
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Percentage
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Percentage
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reviewed
complement who
55%
75%
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85%

Percentage of staff
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complement who
55%
57%
employees
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100%
ployees assessed
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Percentage
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70%
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Two surveys and/ or developed
conducted
the year
dures
reviewed
KEY
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TARGET
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(Outline
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complement that
60%
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complement that
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Implement
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Secretariat
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effective
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practices
Workforce composition (Race)

STRATEGIC
OBJECTIVE

Good governance

effective and efficient
processes, systems and
practices

None

None

N/A

None

N/A

None

N/A
None
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None
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The
Determination
Delimitation
Committee
meetingand
on 23
May 2013Module
N/A
N/A
is not yet operational.

policies are Assurance Model, Budget Policy,
Internal
Audit
Charter,
Audit and of
Risk
The overall
control
environment
theComentity
N/A
mittee
Charter,
Information
is adequate
andPerformance
effective, except
for signifiThe
and Delimitation
Policy,
Strategic
Planning
Policy
andModule
Codedue
of
cant Determination
control
inefficiencies
to
be corrected
is
yetfor
oprational
Conduct
SCM
officials.and
Approval
will take
to not
changes
in
processes
resources.
place in the next quarter.
N/A
Expenditure is 13% below target due to timing difference between the demarcation procN/A
ess and the financial year. Moreover, income
other than government grants amounting to
N/A
Post
advertised.
R611has
000been
constituted
1.5% of total revenue.
N/A
None

None
The ratio is above the target due to retained
surpluses
over theand
years
The
Determination
Delimitation
is
Seven
policies were
drafted
and/or Module
reviewed.
Post
has
been advertised.
not
yet
oprational
However they were not submitted to the
None
respective
committees for approval. These

None
Seven policies were drafted and/or reviewed,
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None
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Internal
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AGAINST ANNUAL
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Approval
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place in the next quarter.

Part C

governance
1. INTRODUCTION

2. PORTFOLIO COMMITTEE

The Municipal Demarcation Board (“the Board”)
is an independent institution whose members
are appointed for a term of five years. Members
of the Board, and the Chairperson and Deputy
Chairperson are appointed by the President of the
Republic of South Africa, after a selection process
which is laid out in Section 8 of the Municipal
Demarcation Act, 1998 (Act No. 27 of 1998).

In terms of Section 39 of the Local Government:
Municipal Demarcation Act, 1998 the Municipal Demarcation Board is accountable to Parliament and must annually submit to both Houses of
Parliament, a written report on the activities of
the Board. This report must be submitted within
six months after the end of the financial year,
and must include audited financial statements.

The functions and general powers of the Board
are outlined in detail in the Local Government: the
Municipal Demarcation Act, 1998 (Act No. 27 of
1998). In terms of Section 55 of the Constitution,
the Local Government: Municipal Demarcation
Act, 1998 and the Local Government: Municipal
Structures Act, 1998, the MDB is an independent
authority responsible for:
• The determination and re-determination of municipal boundaries;
• The delimitation of wards for local elections;
• The declaration of district management areas,
and the withdrawal of such declarations;
• The assessment of the capacity of district and
local municipalities to perform their functions;
• The rendering of an advisory service in
respect of matters provided for in the
applicable legislation.

The Municipal Demarcation Board was invited and briefed the Portfolio Committee on
Co-operative Governance and Traditional Affairs
on two occasions during the financial year under
review. On 10 October 2012, the Committee was
briefed on the Annual Report for the 2011/2012
financial year and on 19 March 2013 the
Committee was briefed on the performance of
the organisation.

In addition, Cabinet mandated the Board to assist
government departments to align their service delivery boundaries to municipal boundaries.

Members of the Board, and the Chairperson and
Deputy Chairperson are appointed by the President of the Republic of South Africa, after a selection process which is laid out in Section 8 of the
Municipal Demarcation Act, 1998 (Act No. 27 of
1998), for a term. There is no limit to the number
of terms a member of the Board may serve; but
any re-appointment of a member of the Board is
subject to the conditions and procedures set out
in Section 8 of the Local Government: Municipal Demarcation Act, 1998 (Act No. 27 of 1998)
(‘Demarcation Act’). The Board must be impartial and perform its function without fear, favour

The Municipal Demarcation Board accepts that
good corporate governance is essential to support the interests of its stakeholders. The Board
therefore always aspires to conduct its business with integrity, and is committed to applying
and enforcing appropriate corporate governance
principles, policies and practices, in accordance with the guidelines of the King Report on
Corporate Governance, 2002.
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The following key issues were raised by the
Portfolio Committee:
• The alignment of boundaries between the
traditional and municipal boundaries.
• The consultation between the MDB and the
municipalities.

3. THE BOARD

governance

or prejudice. The Board operates either as a full
Board, through its Chairperson, or through a number of its Committees.

Board Charter

The Board Charter was drafted and tabled at the
Board meeting held on 6 December 2012 and it
was resolved that it should be reviewed by legal
experts to ensure that it aligns effectively with the
legislative mandate of the Board. The Code of
Conduct of the Board which applies to both the
Board members and staff is also part of the Charter ensuring full compliance with good governance.

4. RISK MANAGEMENT
In-line with best practice, the Board has instituted a robust Enterprise Risk Management
(ERM) process, founded on a framework that is,
organisationally-embedded, supported and assured, and reviewed on a continuous basis. ERM
is the application of risk management throughout
the Board, rather than only in selected business
areas or disciplines. Accordingly, risk management
at the Board is decentralised with every division of
the Board being responsible for risk management.
The Board’s Risk Management Framework lays
out guiding principles for the Board’s management of risk. This framework comprises the
totality of all the structures, policies, strategies and procedures within the Board that deal
with risk management at the strategic or operational level.
An assessment of the risks is undertaken
annually. This process strives to achieve the
identification of the critical risks the entity may
face, to enable the Board to formulate appropriate risk strategies and action plans to mitigate and
address these risks where necessary.

5. INTERNAL CONTROL UNIT
The internal control systems were introduced at
the Board to provide management and the Board
with comfort regarding the financial position of the
Board, safeguarding of assets (including information) and compliance with related laws and regulations. Our internal auditors monitor the functioning
of the internal control systems and make recommendations to Management and to the Audit and
Risk Committee of the Board.
The Auditor-General has considered our
internal control systems as part of his audit and
identified some deficiencies. All internal control
systems do however, have inherent shortcomings,
including the possibility of human error and the
evasion or flouting of control measures. Even
the best internal control system may provide
only partial assurance.
The Board’s internal control systems were
designed to provide reasonable, and not
absolute, assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the financial statements; to safeguard, verify
and maintain accountability of its assets and to detect fraud, potential liability, loss and material misstatement, while complying with applicable laws
and regulations.
The Board evaluated its internal control systems as at 31 March 2013 with specific regard to financial reporting and safeguarding
of assets against unauthorised purchases
or use. During the period under review, the
internal control system found no material shortcomings, which led to a material loss that
should be reflected in the financial statements
or the external report.
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Composition of the Board

The Board includes one full time member and six part-time members; two vacancies exist in the Board.
The Board assumed office on 20 February 2009, and will remain in office until 19 February 2014. Membership of the Municipal Demarcation Board is as follows:

Other committees

Number
of Board
meetings
attended

20 February 2009

Executive Committee

13

Deputy Board
Chairperson

20 February 2009

Executive Committee;
Boundaries, Powers and
Functions Committee

13

Board member

20 February 2009

Remuneration and Human
Capital Committee

6

9

Date
Name

Designation

Landiwe J Mahlangu

Board Chairperson

Nondumiso Gwayi
Nicolaas C Steytler

Appointed

Resigned

Khosi TJ Ramovha

Board member

20 February 2009

Executive Committee;
Audit and Risk Committee;
Remuneration and Human
Capital Committee.

Lebina D Tsotetsi

Board member

20 February 2009

Audit and Risk Committee;
Remuneration and Human
Capital Committee.

13

Sumaya GS Castle

Board member

20 February 2009

Audit and Risk Committee;
Boundaries, Powers and
Functions Committee.

7

Wendy L Ovens

Board member

20 February 2009

Audit and Risk Committee;
Boundaries, Powers and
Functions Committee.

10

Audit and Risk Committee;
Remuneration and Human
Capital Committee; Boundaries, Powers and Functions
Committee.

2

Audit and Risk Committee;
Boundaries, Powers and
Functions Committee.

11

Lynelle K John

Board member

20 February 2009

Ashraf M Adam

Board member

20 February 2009

August
2012

Board member, Ms SGS Castle passed away during April 2013, after a short illness.
Committee
Executive Committee

Audit and Risk Committee

Remuneration and Human Capital
Committee

Boundaries, Powers and Functions
Committee
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No of meetings held

No of members

10

3

Landiwe J Mahlangu
Nondumiso Gwayi
Khosi TJ Ramovha

5

Khosi TJ Ramovha
Wendy L Ovens
Lebina D Tsotetsi
Sumaya GS Castle
Ashraf M Adam

4

Khosi TJ Ramovha
Nicolaas C Steytler
Lebina D Tsotetsi
Lynelle K John

5

Nondumiso Gwayi
Sumaya GS Castle
Wendy L Ovens
Lynelle K John
Ashraf M Adam

6

8

8
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Name of members
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6. INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT COMMITTEES
The Chairperson of the Audit and Risk Committee is Mr Seth M Radebe, an external person, and a practising accountant and auditor. The table below discloses relevant information on the Audit and Risk Committee members:
Name

Internal or
external

If internal, position in
the public entity

Seth M Radebe

External

1 February 2010

6

Khosi TJ Ramovha

Internal

Board member

20 February 2009

4

Lebina D Tsotetsi

Internal

Board member

20 February 2009

5

Sumaya GS Castle

Internal

Board member

20 February 2009

6

Wendy L Ovens

Internal

Board member

20 February 2009

4

Ashraf M Adam

Internal

Board member

20 February 2009

6

Date appointed

Number of
meetings attended

The internal audit function is an independent appraisal mechanism which evaluates the Board’s
procedures and systems (including internal control, disclosure procedures and information system),
ensuring that these are functioning effectively. During the period under review, the internal audit
function carried out its audits in terms of an approved internal audit plan.

7. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS
The following legislations are applicable:
• Local Government: Municipal Demarcation Act,
1998 (Act No. 27 of 1998)
• Local Government: Municipal Structures
Act, 1998 (Act No. 117 of 1998)
• Generally Recognised Accepted Practice
• Income Tax Act, 1962 (Act No. 58 of 1962)
• Value-Added Tax Act, 1991 (Act No. 89 of 1991)
• Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No.
1 of 1999), as amended
• Treasury Regulations, March 2005, issued in
terms of the PFMA
• Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act,
2000 (Act No. 5 of 2000)
• All practice notes on Supply Chain
Management Act
• Employment Equity Act, 1998 (Act No. 55 of
1998)
• Basic Conditions of Employment Act, 1997 (Act
No. 75 of 1997)
• Labour Relations Act, 1998 (Act No. 88 of 1998)
• Promotion of Justice Administration Act
• Promotion of Access to Information Act

8. FRAUD AND CORRUPTION
The Board irrevocably binds itself to combat
all forms of fraud and corruption and to remain
proactive in the fight against fraud and other
white collar crime.
During the year, the Fraud Prevention Policy and
the Fraud Prevention Plan were reviewed.
The Fraud Prevention Policy provides for a
system of internal controls to prevent and detect fraud and corruption. The system of internal controls includes among others, creating
awareness, policies and procedures; segregation
of duties; internal audit; on-going risk assessment
and mechanism for reporting and monitoring
allegations.
In this regard, the Board, through the Audit
and Risk Committee monitors and reviews
business risk relating to fraud and corruption.
Moreover, the Board makes use of the Public
Service Commission’s National Anti-Corruption
Hotline as a reporting channel.
During the year, there were no allegations of
fraudulent activities reported.
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Ms M Koto

Head: Legal and
Secretariat
9. MINIMISING CONFLICT OF
INTEREST
The Board has developed procedures to prevent
and minimise conflict of interest. On an annual
basis, Board members and Board employees
are required to disclose their financial interest,
including those of close family members. Such
disclosures ensure that there is no conflict of
interest when decisions are made by the Board
and any of its governance structures.
Furthermore, meeting procedures and the Board
Charter of the Board provide for a member of
the Board or an employee to recuse himself or
herself if there is a perceived or actual conflict
of interest.

10. CODE OF CONDUCT
The Board has in place an approved Code of
Corporate Practice and Conduct. This code is
based upon principles of honesty and integrity. It
serves as a guide to Board members, management and employees as to what is expected of
them from an ethical point of view, both in their
individual conduct and in their relations with
others. Relations include those with stakeholders such as the legislature, the public and fellow
employees and other organs of state.

11. BOARD SECRETARY
The Head: Legal and Secretariat fulfils the role of
the Board secretary.
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12. audit and risk committee report
Mr SM Radebe

Chairperson of the Audit
and RiskCommittee

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2013. The Audit and Risk
Committee is an independent sub-committee of the
Board. Further duties are delegated to the Audit
and Risk Committee by the Board and these activities and duties were effectively discharged during
the year. This report includes both these sets of
duties and responsibilities.

Audit and Risk Committee
Charter
The Audit and Risk Committee has adopted a formal Audit and Risk Committee
Charter that has been approved by
the Board. The Committee has
conducted its affairs in compliance with its charter and has
discharged its responsibilities
contained therein. The Audit
and Risk Committee Charter is
available on request.

Audit and Risk
Committee members,
meeting attendance and
assessment
The committee met six times during the 2012/2013
financial year, in-line with the approved Audit and
Risk Committee Charter, and it consists of the members listed on the following page.
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Member

Number of
meetings
attended

Mr Seth M Radebe:
Committee Chairperson

6

Khosi Tshililo J Ramovha

5

Mr Ashraf M Adam

6

Ms Sumaya GS Castle

6

Ms Wendy L Ovens

4

Mr Lebina D Tsotetsi

5

The effectiveness of the Audit and Risk Committee and its individual members are assessed on
an annual basis.

Role and responsibilities
Statutory duties
The committee reports that it has operated and
performed its oversight responsibilities in compliance with Section 51(1)(a) of the PFMA and
Treasury Regulations 27.1.8. The Audit and Risk
Committee is an advisory committee of the organisation, operating with an independent and
objective stance.
Evaluation of Annual Financial Statements
The Audit and Risk Committee has:
• reviewed and discussed with the AuditorGeneral and the Accounting Authority the
audited annual financial statements to be
included in the Annual Report;
• reviewed the Auditor-General’s audit report,
the management letter and management
responses thereto, and
• reviewed accounting policies and practices.
The Committee concurs and accepts the conclusions of the Auditor-General on the Annual
Financial Statements and is of the opinion that
the audited financial statements be accepted. The committee agrees that the adoption
of the going concern premise is appropriate in
preparing the Annual Financial Statements.
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External Auditor and independence
The Audit and Risk Committee has satisfied
itself that the external auditor, Auditor-General
(AGSA), is independent of the organisation,
which includes consideration to the extent of
other work undertaken by the AGSA and
compliance with criteria relating to independence or conflicts of interest as prescribed by the
Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors.
The committee, in consultation with Executive
management, agreed to the engagement letter,
terms, strategic audit plan and recommended the
budgeted audit fees for the 2012/2013 financial
year to the Accounting Authority. The committee
confirms that there were no non-audit services
provided by the external auditor for the period
under review.
Effectiveness of internal control
The Audit and Risk Committee has overseen
a process by which Internal Audit performed a
written assessment of the effectiveness of the
organisation’s system of internal control and
risk management. This written assessment by
Internal Audit formed the basis for the Audit and
Risk Committee’s recommendation in this regard
to the Board.
In line with the PFMA and the Treasury Regulations,
Internal Audit provides the committee and management with the assurance that internal controls
are appropriate and effective. This is achieved by
means of the risk management process, as well as
the identification of corrective actions and suggested enhancements to the controls and processes.
A formal risk assessment was undertaken by
the institution during the financial year. Consequently, Internal Audit used this data to prepare
the three-year rolling strategic plan and the annual audit plan. Management is committed to address the issues raised by internal and external
auditors, and this is reviewed by the Committee
during its meetings.
Accordingly, the Committee can report that the
system of internal control over financial report-

governance
ing for the period under review was efficient and
effective.
Whistle blowing
The Audit and Risk Committee receives and
deals with any concern or complaints, whether
from within or outside the organisation. During
the year, there were no matters that came to the
attention of the committee.

Duties assigned by the Board
In addition to the statutory duties of the Audit and
Risk Committee, as reported above, the Board
has determined further functions for the Audit
and Risk Committee to perform, as set out in the
Audit and Risk Committee’s Charter. These functions include the following:
Corporate governance
The Audit and Risk Committee is of the opinion
that the Institution complies with the sound principles of corporate governance.
Governance of risk
The Audit and Risk Committee fulfils an oversight
role regarding risk management process within
the organisation. The Committee monitored the
significant risks faced by institution, and it is
satisfied that these risks were managed
effectively. The organisation implements a risk
management strategy which includes a fraud
prevention plan.
In-year management and quarterly reports
in terms of the Public Finance Management
Act. The Audit and Risk Committee is satisfied
that during the year, the content and quality of
quarterly reports prepared and issued by
Management, were proper and in compliance
with the PFMA.

Internal Audit
The Audit and Risk Committee is responsible
for ensuring that the organisation’s Internal Audit function is independent and has the necessary resources, standing and authority within the
organisation to enable it to discharge its duties.
Furthermore, the Committee oversees cooperation between the internal and external auditors,
and serves as a link between the Board and
these functions.
The Committee considered and approved the
Internal Audit Charter and is satisfied that the
Internal Audit Plan was executed accordingly.
The Internal Audit function reports centrally with
responsibility for reviewing and providing assurance on the adequacy of the internal control
environment across all of the organisations’ operations. The Chief Audit Executive is responsible for reporting the findings of the internal audit
work against the agreed Internal Audit Plan to
the Audit and Risk Committee on a regular basis.
The Chief Audit Executive has direct access to
the Audit and Risk Committee, primarily through
its Chairperson.
The Audit and Risk Committee is satisfied that
the Internal Audit function is operating effectively, and that it has addressed the risks pertinent
to the institution in its audits. The Committee
believes that internal audit has contributed to
the improvement of internal controls within
the institution.
On behalf of the Audit and Risk Committee.

Mr SM Radebe CA (SA)
Chairperson: Audit and Risk Committee
31 July 2013
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Part D

human resource
management

01 – Ms Andile Mhlongo • 02 – Ms Bongiwe Baloyi • 03 – Ms Tebogo Mazwi • 04 – Ms Vanie Naidoo • 05 – Ms Maggie Somanje
06 – Ms Zeone Adams • 07 – Head: Admin and HR - Ms Nalini Zoller • 08 – Mr Godfrey Maluleka • 09 – Mr Karl Konar

INTRODUCTION
The Human Resource and Administration Unit
is a component of the Corporate Services Division which provides strategic HR management
and administrative support to the Board and its’
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staff. The unit maintains and implements the
organisation’s strategic objectives and goals
for the period under review, aiming to create a
productive and creative working environment
that enhances the organisation’s effectiveness
through its workforce.

human resources oversight statistics
Personnel cost by programme

Programme

Personnel
expenditure
as a % of total
expenditure

Average
personnel
cost per
employee

Total
expenditure
for the entity

Personnel
expenditure

R’000

R’000

10 998

5 772

52%

14

412

5 010

2 586

52%

5

517

12 647

4 601

36%

11

418

12 959

38%

30

432

Operations and
Research
Finance
Corporate Services
Board

5 540

TOTAL

34 195

No of
employees

R’000

Personnel cost by salary band

Level

Personnel
expenditure

% of personnel
expenditure to
total personnel
cost

R

No of employees

Average
personnel cost
per employee

R

R

Top management

3 063 866

24%

3

1 021 289

Senior management

2 641 533

20%

3

880 511

Professionally-qualified

1 601 709

12%

5

320 342

Skilled

5 651 765

44%

19

297 461

TOTAL

12 958 873

100%

30

431 962

Performance rewards

Level

Performance
rewards

Personnel
expenditure

% of performance
rewards to total
personnel cost

R’000

R’000

0

3 064

0%

Senior management

61

2 642

2%

Professionally-qualified

57

1 602

4%

Skilled

252

5 652

4%

TOTAL

370

12 959

3%

Top management

R’000

35

Training costs

Division

Training
Personnel
Training
expenditure as
expenditure expenditure
a % of
personnel
cost
R’000
R’000

No of
employees
trained

Average
training cost
per employee
R’000

Operations and
Research

5 772

60

1%

8

8

Finance

2 586

55

2%

5

11

Corporate Services

4 601

35

1%

8

4

12 959

150

1%

21

7

TOTAL

Employment and vacancies
2011/2012
Number of
employees

2012/2013
Approved
posts

2012/2013
Number of
employees

2012/2013
Vacancies

% of
vacancies

Operations and
Research

12

17

13

4

24%

Finance

5

8

6

2

25%

Corporate Services

7

17

11

6

35%

TOTAL

24

42

30

12

29%

2011/2012
Number of
employees

2012/2013
Approved
posts

2012/2013
Number of
employees

2012/2013
Vacancies

% of
vacancies

Top management

0

4

3

1

25%

Senior management

4

6

3

3

50%

Professionally-qualified

2

10

5

5

50%

Skilled

18

22

19

3

14%

TOTAL

24

42

30

12

29%

Programme

Level

Employment changes
Level

36

Employment at
Employment at
Appointments Terminations
beginning of period
end of the period

Top management

0

3

0

3

Senior management

4

1

2

3

Professionally-qualified

2

3

0

5

Skilled

18

4

3

19

TOTAL

24

11

5
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Reason for staff leaving
Reason

Number

% of total number of staff leaving

Death

0

-

Resignation

5

17%

Dismissal

0

-

Retirement

0

-

Ill health

0

-

Expiry of contract

0

-

Other

0

-

TOTAL

5

17%

Labour Relations: Misconduct and disciplinary action
Nature of disciplinary action

Number

Verbal warning

-

Written warning

1

Final written warning

-

Dismissal

-

Equity target and employment equity status
MALE
Level

African

Coloured

Indian

White

Current

Target

Current

Target

Current

Target

Current

Target

Top management

2

2

0

0

0

0

0

0

Senior management

0

0

0

0

1

1

0

0

Professionally-qualified

1

2

0

1

0

1

0

1

Skilled

5

5

0

1

2

2

1

1

TOTAL

8

9

0

2

3

4

1

2

Level

FEMALE
Coloured
Indian

African

White

Current

Target

Current

Target

Current

Target

Current

Target

Top management

1

0

0

1

0

0

0

0

Senior management

1

1

0

1

1

1

0

1

Professionally-qualified

3

2

0

1

0

1

1

1

Skilled

8

6

1

1

1

1

1

1

TOTAL

13

9

1

4

2

3

2

3

Staff with disabilities
Level

Male

Female

Current

Target

Current

Target

Top management

0

1

0

1

Senior management

0

1

0

1

Professionally-qualified

0

1

0

1

Skilled

0

1

0

1

TOTAL

0

4

0

4
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Part E

Financial information

0

01 – Chief Financial Officer: Mr Dzivhuluwani Ligege • 02 – Mr Mteteleli Gqalane
03 – Ms Mpho Ratya • 04 – Ms Pikkie Saunders • 05 – Mr Evans Molopo • 06 – Ms Maureen Ramatlapeng
07 – Mr Shandukani Mathivha • 08 – Mr Jonathan Robson • 09 – Ms Matankiso Mahlangu • 10 – Ms Nontokozo Malinga
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Statement of Responsibility
for the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2013
The Accounting Authority is responsible for the
preparation of the public entity’s Annual Financial Statements and for the judgements made in
this information.
The Accounting Authority is responsible for
establishing, and implementing a system of internal control designed to provide reasonable
assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the
Annual Financial Statements.
In my opinion the financial statements fairly
reflect the operations of the public entity for the
financial year ended 31 March 2013.

Mr Dzivhuluwani KN Ligege
Chief Financial Officer
Municipal Demarcation Board
31 May 2013

The external auditors are engaged to express an
independent opinion of the AFS of the Municipal
Demarcation Board.
The Municipal Demarcation Board’s Annual
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March
2013 have been audited by the external auditors
and their report is presented on page 44.
The Annual Financial Statements of the Municipal
Demarcation Board is set out on Part F have been
approved.

Ms Gabi C Gumbi-Masilela
Chief Executive Officer
Municipal Demarcation Board
31 May 2013
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report of the chief executive officer
General financial review

The surplus funds are earmarked for the
completion of the demarcation process which
by its nature overlaps financial years or budgeting cycle. The funds will be utilised for conducting formal investigations into redetermination of
municipal boundaries and well as re-categorisation of municipalities. The process is expected to be completed by the second quarter
of 2012/2013.

The Board received government grants for the
year amounted to R40 397 000. Income generated from sale of maps, interest earned from
investments, and other income amounted to
R926 000. The total revenue for the current financial year is R41 323 000 compared to
R39 123 000 in 2011/2012 representing a yearon-year growth of 6%.

Spending trends

The total expenditure for the year amounted to
R34 195 000 resulting in a surplus of R6 972 000.
The surplus for the year amounts to 17% of total
revenue received.
2010

2011

2012

2013

Year on year
expenditure trends

R’000

%

R’000

%

R’000

%

R’000

%

R’000

%

Income

25 952

23%

35 287

36%

37 879

7%

39 123

3%

41 323

6%

25 420

23%

34 557

36%

37 187

8%

38 482

3%

40 397

5%

532

35%

730

37%

692

-5%

641

-7%

926

44%

24 619

55%

27 639

12%

35 977

30%

35 811

0%

34 351

-4%

1 199

2%

1 006

-16%

1 692

68%

2 202

30%

2 606

18%

Salaries

8 224

21%

10 705

30%

11 322

6%

13 084

8%

Project expenses

4 417

8%

429

-90%

929

0%

Voted funds
Other income
Expenditure
Board members’
remuneration

Lease payments
Publications, notices
and gazettes
Audit fees
Travelling costs
Other operating
expenses
Surplus for
the period

40

2009

The table below presents year-on-year change in
expenditure and income trends:

4 296 -339%

12 061

7%

3 580 734%

4 943

38%

3 280 -34%

2 292 147%

2 311

1%

2 311

0%

2 311

0%

5 633

31%

5 984

6%

2 002

-67%

2 173

9%

715

-23%

1 003

40%

923

-8%

797

-14%

819

3%

1 280

-1%

1 677

31%

2 161

29%

2 691

25%

2 738

2%

3 559

46%

4 894

38%

8 004

64%

8 804

10%

7 340 -17%

1 333
1 333

7 648
7 648
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1 902
1 902

3 311
3 311

6 972
6 972

Capacity constraints and
challenges

current financial commitments and new activities
for the next three years.

During the next three financial years, expenditure
will exceed voted funds. Expenditure is expected
to be above allocated funds due to the following
activities:

The National Treasury is still considering the
Board’s request.

Delimitation of wards for the 2016
local elections

Concluded unsolicited bid proposal
for the year under review

Intensive public participation will be undertaken in preparation for the local election in 2013.
Expenditure associated with this activity includes
among others: communication costs through
media and government gazettes, travel and
accommodation.

Implementation of an expanded
organisational structure
The Board approved a new organisational structure which is currently under implementation.
Units that will be capacitated include Research
and Media and Stakeholder Management.

Discontinued activities/
activities to be discontinued
None.

New activities
There are a number of new activities that are envisaged by the Board that are critical in its delivery of the mandate, namely the Research Unit to
focus on the research component of the Board’s
work, including the municipal capacity assessment, the Stakeholder Engagement and Public
Participation Unit to enhance public engagement
with various partners and stakeholders, and finally the Communications Unit. These units are
very critical for the effective discharge of the
mandate as outlined in the Act.

Requests for retention of
surpluses
The entity has requested approval from Treasury
to retain all of its surpluses with a view to fund

Supply chain management

None.

SCM processes and systems in place
The entity has a Supply Chain Management
Unit located within the Finance Division, in
accordance with the revised organisational
structure. The SCM unit is supported by three
committees, i.e. the Bid Specification Committee, Bid Evaluation Committee and Bid Adjudication Committee.
An annual procurement plan is in place to guide
the activities of the unit.

Challenges experienced and
resolved
The SCM unit experienced vacancies during
the year. However, these were eventually filled.
Having capacitated the unit and put in place bid
committees, there has been significant improvement in compliance to procurement regulations
and prescripts.

Audit report matters in the
previous year
In his 2011/2012 report, the Auditor-General
raised certain matters of emphasis. These matters include, under-spending on the budget,
audit adjustments to Annual Financial Statements, non-compliance to procurement regulations, and systems of internal control.
During the year, management implemented
controls to address the weaknesses identified.
Management actions to resolve the matters
raised by the Auditor-General are addressed
hereunder.
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Other matters:
Matters raised by the Auditor-General in
2011/2012

1

Annual Financial Statements. The Annual
Financial Statements submitted for audit
were not prepared in accordance with the
prescribed financial reporting framework
resulting in material adjustments with
respect to disclosure of items.

Management action implemented

The financial statements were previously
prepared manually, which could result in
errors and/or omissions.

Status
(resolved,
partially
resolved or
unresolved)
Resolved

Management acquired and implemented an
accounting software application for preparation of financial statements. The software
has updated templates and controls built in
to ensure compliance to Generally Recognised Accounting Practices.
Further controls include quality assurance
by Management, and Internal Audit.

2

Expenditure management and
procurement management. There were
instances of non-compliance to procurement regulations, such as the following:
Price quotations were not requested for
goods and service below R500 000, as
prescribed by TR16A6.1;
Quotations were awarded to suppliers
whose matters had not been declared by
the SARS to be in order, as prescribed by
TR 16A9.1(d);
Quotations were awarded to bidders who
did not submit a declaration on whether
they are employed by the state, or connect
to any person employed by the state as
prescribed by TR 16A8.3;
There were instances of irregular expenditure during the previous financial year.

Supply chain management has improved
significantly during the year. In the past,
control weaknesses were due to vacancies
within the unit, and lack of standard operating controls or procedures. Management
implemented the following controls:
The vacancy for a senior SCM officer has
been filled;
Bid Evaluation Committee and Bid Adjudication Committees have been put in place;
Compliance checklists have been put
in place to ensure that prior to award of
quotations or contract, all requirements in
terms of procurement regulations are met;
Internal Audit provides assurance through
review of SCM processes followed, prior to
awarding of significant contracts;
Supply chain management is audited at
least once a year by Internal Audit.
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Matters raised by the Auditor-General in
2011/2012

Management action implemented

Status
(resolved,
partially
resolved or
unresolved)

3

Leadership. The Accounting Officer did not
exercise adequate oversight responsibility
regarding financial and performance
reporting and compliance with laws and
regulations and related internal controls.

Inadequate oversight on financial and
performance reporting is ascribed to
vacancies in key management personnel.
During the year, the Board appointed the
Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial
Officer and Executive Manager
Operations and Research.

4

Financial and performance. Management
did not prepare regular, accurate and complete financial and performance reports that
are supported and evidenced by reliable
information.

Partially
Monthly financial statements, budgetary
reports and quarterly performance reporting Resolved
were in place throughout the year.

Partially
Resolved

The Board and its committees provided
oversight on financial and performance
information on a periodic basis.

Economic viability
The financial statements have been prepared
on the going concern basis, since there is every
reason to believe that the Board has adequate resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future.

Ms Gabi C Gumbi-Masilela
Chief Executive Officer
Municipal Demarcation Board
31 May 2013
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO PARLIAMENT
ON THE MUNICIPAL DEMARCATION BOARD

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Accounting officer’s responsibility for the
financial statements
2. The accounting officer is responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with South
African Standards of Generally Recognised
Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP),
and the requirements of the Public Finance
Management Act of South Africa, 1999
(Act No. 1 of 1999), and for such internal
control as the accounting officer determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No.
25 of 2004) (PAA), the General Notice issued
in terms thereof and International Standards
on Auditing. Those standards require that I
comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
4. An audit involves performing procedures to
obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for my audit opinion.

Auditor-General’s responsibility
3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on my audit.
I conducted my audit in accordance with the

Opinion
6. In my opinion, the financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Municipal Demarcation

Introduction
1. I have audited the financial statements of
the Municipal Demarcation Board set out
on pages 48 to 84, which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 March
2013, the statement of financial performance,
statement of changes in net assets, the cash
flow statement and statement of comparison
of budget and actual amounts for the year
then ended, and the notes, comprising a
summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.
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Board as at 31 March 2013, and its financial
performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with SA Standards of
GRAP and the requirements of the requirements of the PFMA.
Emphasis of matter
7. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Material underspending of the budget
8. As disclosed in the statement of financial performance, the constitutional entity has materially underspent the budget to the amount
of R6 972 000, 00. As a result the entity has
not achieved its objectives and results in the
entity having a large cash reserve.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND
REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
9. In accordance with the PAA and the General
Notice issued in terms thereof, I report the
following findings relevant to performance
against predetermined objectives, compliance with laws and regulations and internal
control, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion.
Predetermined objectives
10. I performed procedures to obtain evidence
about the usefulness and reliability of the information in the Annual Performance Report
as set out on pages 24 to 25 of the annual
report.
11. The reported performance against predetermined objectives was evaluated against the
overall criteria of usefulness and reliability.
The usefulness of information in the Annual
Performance Report relates to whether it is
presented in accordance with the National

Treasury’s annual reporting principles and
whether the reported performance is consistent with the planned objectives. The usefulness of information further relates to whether
indicators and targets are measurable (i.e.,
well-defined, verifiable, specific, measurable
and time bound) and relevant as required by
the National Treasury Framework for managing programme performance information.
12. The reliability of the information in respect
of the selected objectives is assessed to determine whether it adequately reflects the
facts (i.e. whether it is valid, accurate and
complete).
13. There were no material findings on the Annual Performance Report concerning the
usefulness and reliability of the information.
Additional matters
14. Although no material findings concerning the
usefulness and reliability of the performance
information were identified in the Annual
Performance Report, I draw attention to the
following matter below.
Achievement of planned targets
15. Of the total number of 19 targets planned for
the year, five of the targets were not achieved
during the year under review. This represents
26% of total planned targets that were not
achieved for the year under review. This was
due to underspending of the budget relevant
to Programme 2.
Compliance with laws and regulations
16. I performed procedures to obtain evidence
that the entity has complied with applicable laws and regulations regarding financial
matters, financial management and other related matters. My findings on material noncompliance with specific matters in key ap-
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plicable laws and regulations as set out in the
General Notice issued in terms of the PAA
are as follows:
Expenditure management
17. The accounting officer did not take effective
steps to prevent irregular expenditure, as
per the requirements of section 38(1) (c) (ii)
of the Public Finance Management Act and
Treasury Regulation 9.1.1.

Leadership
20. The leadership did not exercise oversight responsibility regarding financial and performance reporting and compliance with laws and
regulations and related internal controls.
Financial and performance management
21. Management did not review and monitor
compliance laws and regulations.

Procurement and contract management
18. Goods and services with a transaction
value below R500 000 were procured without
obtaining the required price quotations, as
required by Treasury Regulation 16A6.1.
Internal control
19. I considered internal control relevant to my
audit of the financial statements, performance report and compliance with laws and
regulations. The matters reported below under the fundamentals of internal control are
limited to the significant deficiencies that
resulted in the findings on the performance
report and the findings on compliance with
laws and regulations included in this report.
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Pretoria
31 July 2013

Part F

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013
The reports and statements set out below comprise the financial statements
presented to the Parliament
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Statement of Financial Position

as at 31 March 2013

Notes

2013
R’000

2012
R’000

Assets
Current Assets
Inventories

3

213

287

Receivables from exchange transactions

4

431

418

Cash and cash equivalents

5

25,172

19,259

25,816

19,964

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment

6

3,077

3,174

Intangible assets

7

825

531

3,902

3,705

29,718

23,669

477

666

Total Assets
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Operating lease liability
Payables from exchange transactions

8

892

1,246

Provisions

9

1,124

1,505

2,493

3,417

2,493

3,417

27,225

20,252

27,225

20,252

Total Liabilities
Net Assets
Net Assets
Accumulated surplus
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Statement of Financial Performance

for the year ended 31 March 2013

Notes

2013
R’000

2012
R’000

Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions
Sale of goods

9

18

50

-

Investment income

602

623

Total Revenue from exchange transactions

661

641

40,397

38,482

265

-

40,662

38,482

11

41,323

39,123

Employee benefit costs

12

(13,084)

(12,061)

Audit Fees

13

(819)

(797)

Depreciation and amortisation

14

(1,190)

(1,009)

Project Expenses

15

(3,280)

(4,943)

Other operating expenses

16

(5,769)

(6,833)

Administrative expenses

17

(10,053)

(10,168)

(34,195)

(35,811)

(156)

(1)

6,972

3,311

Other exchange revenue

Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Transfer revenue
Government grants

10

Other non-exchange revenue
Total revenue from non-exchange transactions
Total revenue
Expenditure

Total expenditure
Loss on disposal of assets
Surplus for the year

18
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets

for the year ended 31 March 2013
accumulated
surplus

R’000

Balance at 01 April 2011

total net
assets

R’000

16,941

16,941

Surplus for the year

3,311

3,311

Total changes

3,311

3,311

20,261

20,261

(8)

(8)

20,253

20,253

Surplus for the year

6,972

6,972

Total changes

6,972

6,972

27,225

27,225

Changes in net assets

Opening balance as previously reported
Adjustments
Correction of prior period error
Balance at 01 April 2012 as restated
Changes in net assets

Balances at 31 March 2013
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Cash Flow Statement

for the year ended 31 March 2013

Notes

2013
R’000

2012
R’000

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts
Revenue from exchange transactions

9

49

40,397

38,482

Investment income

602

623

Other cash receipts

315

-

41,323

39,154

Employee benefit costs

(13,465)

(12,000)

Suppliers

(20,406)

(22,363)

(33,871)

(34,363)

20

7,452

4,791

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

6

(1,165)

(1,601)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

6

38

4

Purchase of intangible assets

7

(419)

(316)

Proceeds from sale of intangible assets

7

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Payments

Net cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities

Nett cash flows from investing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

5

4

-

(1,542)

(1,913)

5,910

2,878

19,259

16,381

25,169

19,259
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

for the year ended 31 March 2013
Budget on cash basis

2013
Approved
budget
R’000

2013
Adjustments
R’000

2013
Final
budget
R’000

2013
Actual
amounts on
comparable
basis
R’000

2013
Difference
between
final
budget and
actual
R’000

Statement of
Financial Performance
Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions
Sale of goods

-

-

-

9

9

Other exchange revenue

-

-

-

50

50

Interest received – investment

497

-

497

602

105

Total revenue from
exchange transactions

497

-

497

661

164

40,362

-

40,362

40,397

35

-

-

-

265

265

Total revenue from
non-exchange transactions

40,362

-

40,362

40,662

300

Total revenue

40,859

-

40,859

41,323

464

(15,787)

-

(15,787)

(13,084)

2,703

Revenue from nonexchange transactions
Transfer revenue
Government grants
and subsidies
Other non-exchange
revenue

Expenditure
Personnel

(900)

-

(900)

(819)

81

Depreciation and
amortisation

(1,137)

-

(1,137)

(1,190)

(53)

Contracted services

(3,911)

-

(3,911)

(3,280)

631

Other operating expenses

(6,392)

-

(6,392)

(5,769)

623

General expenses

(12,735)

-

(12,735)

(10,053)

2,682

Total expenditure

(40,862)

-

(40,862)

(34,195)

6,667

(3)

-

(3)

7,128

7,131

-

-

-

(156)

(156)

Surplus

(3)

-

(3)

6,972

6,975

Actual amount on comparable basis as
presented in the Budget and Actual
Comparative Statement

(3)

-

(3)

6,972

6,975

Administration

Operating surplus
Loss on disposal of assets and liabilities
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Accounting Policies

for the year ended 31 March 2013
1. Presentation of Financial
Statements
The financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the Standards of Generally
Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP), including any interpretations, guidelines and directives
issued by the Accounting Standards Board.
These financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are
in accordance with historical cost convention
unless specified otherwise. They are presented in
South African Rand. Amounts in the financial
statements are rounded to the nearest R’000.
A summary of the significant accounting
policies, which have been consistently applied,
are disclosed below.
Accounting policies for material transactions,
events or conditions not covered by the GRAP
reporting framework have been developed in
accordance with paragraphs 7, 11 and 12 of
GRAP 3 and the hierarchy approved in Directive 5 issued by the Accounting Standards Board
Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses have
not been offset except when offsetting is required
or permitted by a standard of GRAP.
The financial statements incorporate the principle accounting policies set out below, which are
consistent with those adopted in the previous
year. The details of any changes in accounting
policies are explained in the relevant policy.

1.1 Critical Accounting
Estimates and Judgements in
Applying Accounting Policies
The Board makes estimates and assumptions

that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities within the current and subsequent
financial years. Estimates and judgments are
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.
There does, however, not appear to be a
significant risk that these assumptions will cause
significant adjustments to the carrying amount
of assets and liabilities within the subsequent
financial years.
Significant judgements include:
Fair value estimation
The carrying value of trade receivables and
payables are assumed to approximate their
fair values.
Impairment testing
The recoverable amounts of cash-generating
units and individual assets have been determined based on the higher of value-in-use
calculations and fair values less costs to sell.
These calculations require the use of estimates
and assumptions. The entity reviews and tests
the carrying value of assets when events or
changes in circumstances suggest that the
carrying amount not be recoverable.
Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets
The Board re-assesses the useful lives and residual lives of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets on an annual basis. In reassessing the useful lives and residual values
of property, plant and equipment Management
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considers the condition and use of the individual
assets, to determine the remaining period over
which the asset can and will be used.

1.2 Revenue from exchange
transactions
Exchange transactions are transactions in
which one entity receives assets or services, or
has liabilities extinguished, and directly gives
approximately equal value to another entity in
exchange.
Measurement
Revenue is measured at fair value of the
consideration received or receivable on an
accrual basis.

Measurement
Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is
measured at the amount of the increase in net
assets recognised by the entity.
Conditional grants
Revenue received from grants is recognised
as income when the entity complies with the
conditions of the grant.
The revenue is deferred and recognised as a
liability to the extent that the conditions of the
grant have not been met.

Sales of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised
when:
• significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods have been transferred to the buyer;
• the amount can be measured reliably; and it
is probable that future economic benefits or
service potential will flow to the Board.

1.4 Property, plant
and equipment

Investment income
Revenue arising from the use of others of entity
assets yielding interest is recognised when:
• it is probable that future economic benefits or
service potential will flow to the Board; and
• the amount can be measured reliably.

Initial Recognition
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
• it is probable that future economic benefits or
service potential associated with the item will
flow to the entity; and
• the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

1.3 Revenue from
non-exchange transactions
Non-exchange transactions are defined as transactions where the entity receives value from another entity without directly giving approximately
equal value in exchange.
Recognition
An inflow of resources from a non-exchange
transaction recognised as an asset is recognised
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also recognised for the same inflow.
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Property, plant and equipment are tangible noncurrent assets (including infrastructure assets)
that are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, rental to others, or for
administrative purposes, and are expected to be
used during more than one period.

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in ar-
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riving at the cost. The cost, if any, also includes
the necessary costs of dismantling and removing
the assets and restoring the site on which it is
located.
Where an asset is acquired at no cost, or for a
nominal cost, its cost is its fair value as at date
of acquisition.
Subsequent measurement
Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the Board and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
the statement of financial performance during the
financial period in which they are incurred.
Depreciation
Subsequent to initial measurement, property,
plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight
line basis over their estimated useful lives to their
estimated residual values.
The useful lives of items of property, plant and
equipment have been assessed as follows:
Item		
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles 		
Office equipment
IT equipment 		
Leasehold improvements

Average useful life
10 - 15 years
5 - 8 years
5 - 12 years
3 - 9 years
5 years

The useful life and depreciation method of each
asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting
date. If the expectations differ from previous esti-

mates, the change is accounted for as a change
in accounting estimate.
When there is no reasonable certainty that the
lessee will obtain ownership by the end of the
lease term, the asset is fully depreciated over the
shorter of the lease term and its useful life.
Reviewing the useful life of an asset on an annual basis does not require the entity to amend
the previous estimate, unless expectations differ
from the previous estimate.
Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to
the total cost of the item is depreciated separately.
The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included
in the carrying amount of another asset.
Derecognition
Items of entity are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further
economic benefits, or service potential expected
from the use of the asset.
The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment
is included in surplus or deficit when the item
is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from
the derecognition of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and
the carrying amount of the item.

1.5 Prior year errors
The Board shall correct material prior year
errors retrospectively in the first set of financial statements authorised for issue after their
discovery by:
i) Restating the comparative amounts for the
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prior year(s) presented in which the error occurred; or
ii) If the error occurred before the earliest prior
year presented, restating the opening balances of assets, liabilities and accumulated
surplus for the prior year presented.

1.6 Inventories
Inventories are initially measured at cost except
where inventories are acquired through a nonexchange transaction, then their costs are their
fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Subsequently inventories are measured at the
lower of cost and net realisable value.
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost
and current replacement cost where they are
held for:
• distribution at no charge or for a nominal
charge; or
• consumption in the production process of
goods to be distributed at no charge or for a
nominal charge.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of operations less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale, exchange or
distribution.
Current replacement cost is the cost the entity incurs to acquire the asset on the reporting date.
The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.
The cost of inventories is assigned using the
weighted average cost formula. The same cost
formula is used for all inventories having a
similar nature and use to the entity.
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1.7 Intangible assets
An asset is identified as an intangible asset
when it:
• is capable of being separated or divided from
an entity and sold, transferred, licensed,
rented or exchanged,
• either individually or together with a related
contract, assets or liability; or
• arises from contractual rights or other legal
rights, regardless whether those rights are
transferable or separate;
• from the entity or from other rights and
obligations.
Initial recognition
An intangible asset is recognised when:
• it is probable that the expected future
economic benefits or service potential that
are attributable to the asset will flow to the
entity; and
• the cost or fair value of the asset can be
measured reliably.
Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.
An intangible asset acquired through a nonexchange transaction, the cost shall be its fair
value as at the date of acquisition.
Subsequent measurement
Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line
basis over their useful lives. After initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortisation and any impairment
losses. The residual value of intangible assets is
assumed to be zero.
Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values as follows:
Item
Computer software

Useful life
3 - 9 years
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De-recognition
Intangible assets are derecognised:
• on disposal; or
• when no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or
disposal.
The gain or loss is the difference between the
net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying
amount. It is recognised in surplus or deficit when
the asset is derecognised.

1.8 Leases
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership.
A lease is classified as an operating lease if it
does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership.
Operating leases - lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. The difference between the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual
payments are recognised as an operating lease
asset or liability.

1.9 Irregular expenditure
Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of
the PFMA is expenditure other than unauthorised
expenditure, incurred in contravention of or that
is not in accordance with a requirement of any
applicable legislation, including (a) this Act; or
(b) the State Tender Board Act, 1968 (Act No. 86
of 1968), or any regulations made in terms of
the Act; or
(c) any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures in that provincial government.

National Treasury Practice Note No. 4 of
2008/2009 which was issued in terms of sections
76(1) to 76(4) of the PFMA requires the following
(effective from 1 April 2008):
Irregular expenditure that was incurred and
identified during the current financial and which
was condoned before year end and/or before
finalisation of the financial statements must
also be recorded appropriately in the irregular
expenditure register. In such an instance, no
further action is also required with the exception
of updating the note to the financial statements.
Irregular expenditure that was incurred and
identified during the current financial year and
for which condonement is being awaited at year
end must be recorded in the irregular expenditure register. No further action is required with
the exception of updating the note to the financial
statements.
Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the
previous financial year and is only condoned in
the following financial year, the register and the
disclosure note to the financial statements must
be updated with the amount condoned.
Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which
was not condoned by the National Treasury or the
relevant authority must be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. If liability
for the irregular expenditure can be attributed to
a person, a debt account must be created if such
a person is liable in law. Immediate steps must
thereafter be taken to recover the amount from
the person concerned. If recovery is not possible, the accounting officer or accounting authority
may write off the amount as debt impairment and
disclose such in the relevant note to the financial
statements. The irregular expenditure register
must also be updated accordingly. If the irregular
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expenditure has not been condoned and no person is liable in law, the expenditure related thereto
must remain against the relevant programme/expenditure item, be disclosed as such in the note to
the financial statements and updated accordingly
in the irregular expenditure register.

1.10 Fruitless and wasteful
expenditure
Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which
was made in vain and would have been avoided
had reasonable care been exercised.
All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in
the statement of financial performance in the
year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the expense, and where recovered, it is
subsequently accounted for as revenue in the
statement of financial performance.

1.11 Financial instruments
Classification
The entity classifies financial assets and financial
liabilities into the following categories:
• Held-to-maturity investment;
• Loans and receivables;
• Available-for-sale financial assets;
• Financial liabilities measured at amortised
cost.
Classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial instruments were obtained / incurred
and takes place at initial recognition. Classification is re-assessed on an annual basis, except for
derivatives and financial assets designated as at
fair value through surplus or deficit, which shall
not be classified out of the fair value through surplus or deficit category.
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial instruments are recognised initially
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when the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.
The entity classifies financial instruments, or their
component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangement.
Financial instruments are measured initially
at fair value, except for equity investments for
which a fair value is not determinable, which
are measured at cost and are classified as
available-for-sale financial assets.
For financial instruments which are not at fair
value through surplus or deficit, transaction
costs are included in the initial measurement of
the instrument.
Transaction costs on financial instruments at fair
value through surplus or deficit are recognised in
surplus or deficit.
Subsequent measurement
Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method, less accumulated impairment losses.
Held-to-maturity investments are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method, less accumulated impairment
losses.
Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value. This excludes
equity investments for which a fair value is not
determinable, which are measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses.
Gains and losses arising from changes in fair
value are recognised in equity until the asset is
disposed of or determined to be impaired. Interest

accounting policies for the year ended 31 march 2013

on available-for-sale financial assets calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised
in surplus or deficit as part of other income. Dividends received on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in surplus or deficit as
part of other income when the entity’s right to receive payment is established.
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets denominated in a foreign currency are
analysed between translation differences resulting from changes in amortised cost and other
changes in the carrying amount. Translation
differences on monetary items are recognised
in surplus or deficit, while translation differences on non-monetary items are recognised
in equity.
Financial liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
Receivables from exchange transactions
Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method. Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in surplus or deficit when there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired.
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor,
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments (more than 30 days overdue) are considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired.
The allowance recognised is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account, and the
amount of the deficit is recognised in surplus or
deficit within operating expenses.
When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account for trade
receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against operating expenses in surplus or deficit.
Trade and other receivables are classified as
loans and receivables.
Payables from exchange transactions
Trade payables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and other shortterm highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. These are initially and subsequently
recorded at fair value.
Held to maturity
These financial assets are initially measured at
fair value plus direct transaction costs.
At subsequent reporting dates these are
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method, less any impairment loss
recognised to reflect irrecoverable amounts.
An impairment loss is recognised in surplus or
deficit when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the investment’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition.
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Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent
periods when an increase in the investment’s
recoverable amount can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to the restriction that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the
impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
Financial assets that the entity has the positive
intention and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held to maturity.

1.12 Comparative figures
When the presentation or classification of items
in the Annual Financial Statements is amended,
prior period comparative amounts are reclassified. The nature and reasons for the reclassification are disclosed.

1.13 Related parties
Parties are considered to be related if one party
has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in
making financial and operating decisions or if the
related party entity and another party are subject to common control. Related parties include
individuals who have significant influence over
the Board, such as members of the Board and
key management personnel. Only transactions
between the Board and related parties during the
reporting period not at arm’s length or not in the
ordinary course of business as well as comparative information are disclosed in the notes to
the annual financial statements.

1.14 Provisions and
contingencies
Provisions are recognised when:
• the entity has a present obligation as a result
of a past event;
• it is probable that an outflow of resources em-
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bodying economic benefits or service potential
will be required to settle the obligation; and
• a reliable estimate can be made of the
obligation.
The amount of a provision is the best estimate of
the expenditure expected to be required to settle
the present obligation at the reporting date.
Where the effect of time value of money is
material, the amount of a provision is the present
value of the expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation.
The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the liability.
Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
Provisions are reversed if it is no longer probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required, to
settle the obligation.
Where discounting is used, the carrying amount
of a provision increases in each period to reflect
the passage of time. This increase is recognised
as an interest expense.
A provision is used only for expenditures for
which the provision was originally recognised.
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are
not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed
in note.

1.15 Going Concern
These financial statements have been prepared
on the basis of accounting policies applicable
to a going concern. The basis presumes that
funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of the assets and
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settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations
and commitments will occur in the ordinary
course of business.
The ability of the Board to continue as a going concern is dependent upon further funding
from Parliament.

1.16 Budget information
The Board discloses a comparison of the
budget amounts for which it is held publicly accountable and actual amounts as a note to the

financial statements. The comparison of budget and
actual amounts shall present separately for
each level of legislative oversight:
(i) The approved and final budget amounts; and
(ii) The actual amounts on a comparable basis.
The financial statements and the budget are on
the same basis of accounting therefore a comparison with the budgeted amounts for the reporting period have been included in the Statement
of comparison of budget and actual amounts.
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2. New standards and
interpretations
2.1 Standards and
interpretations effective and
adopted in the current year

In the current year, the entity has adopted the following standards and interpretations that are effective for the current financial year and that are
relevant to its operations.

GRAP 23: Revenue from
Non-exchange Transactions

Revenue from non-exchange transactions arises
when an entity receives value from another entity
without directly giving approximately equal value
in exchange. An asset acquired through a nonexchange transaction shall initially be measured
at its fair value as at the date of acquisition.
This revenue will be measured at the amount of
increase in net assets recognised by the entity.
An inflow of resources from a non-exchange
transaction recognised as an asset shall be recognised as revenue, except to the extent that a
liability is recognised for the same inflow. As an
entity satisfies a present obligation recognised as
a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from
a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset, it will reduce the carrying amount of the liability
recognised as recognise an amount equal to that
reduction.
The effective date of the Standard is for years
beginning on or after 01 April 2012. The entity has
adopted the standard for the first time in the 2013
financial statements.
The impact of the standard is not material.

62

Municipal Demarcation Board Annual Report 2012/13

GRAP 24: Presentation of
Budget Information in the
Financial Statements

Subject to the requirements of paragraph 19, an
entity shall present a comparison of the budget
amounts for which it is held publicly accountable
and actual amounts either as a separate additional financial statement or as additional budget
columns in the financial statements currently presented in accordance with Standards of GRAP.
The comparison of budget and actual amounts
shall present separately for each level of legislative oversight:
• the approved and final budget amounts;
• the actual amounts on a comparable basis; and
• by way of note disclosure, an explanation of
material differences between the budget for
which the entity is held
• publicly accountable and actual amounts,
unless such explanation is included in other
public documents issued
• in conjunction with the financial statements, and
a cross reference to those documents is made
in the notes.
Where an entity prepares its budget and financial
statements on a comparable basis, it includes the
comparison as an additional column in the primary
financial statements.
Where the budget and financial statements are
not prepared on a comparable basis, a separate
statement is prepared called the ‘Statement of
Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts’.
This statement compares the budget amounts
with the amounts in the financial statements adjusted to be comparable to the budget.
A comparable basis means that the budget and
financial statements:
• are prepared using the same basis of
accounting i.e. either cash or accrual;
• include the same activities and entities;

notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 march 2013
• use the same classification system; and
• are prepared for the same period.
The effective date of the standard is for years
beginning on or after 01 April 2012. The entity
has adopted the standard in the 2013 financial
statements.

An entity assess at each reporting date whether
there is any indication that an impairment loss
recognised in prior periods for a non-cash-generating asset may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If any such indication exists, an
entity estimates the recoverable service amount of
that asset.

The adoption of this standard has not had a
material impact on the results of the entity, but
has resulted in more disclosure than would
have previously been provided in the financial
statements.

A reversal of an impairment loss for a non-cashgenerating asset is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit. Any reversal of an impairment loss
of a revalued non-cash-generating asset is treated
as a revaluation increase.

GRAP 21: Impairment of
non-cash-generating assets

The effective date of the standard is for years
beginning on or after 01 April 2012.

Non-cash-generating assets are assets other than
cash-generating assets.
When the carrying amount of a non-cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable service amount,
it is impaired.
An entity assesses at each reporting date whether
there is any indication that a non-cash-generating
asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, an entity estimates the recoverable service
amount of the asset.
The present value of the remaining service potential of a non-cash-generating asset is determined
using one of the following approaches:
• Depreciated replacement cost approach;
• Restoration cost approach; and
• Service units approach.
If the recoverable service amount of a non-cashgenerating asset is less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to
its recoverable service amount. This reduction
is an impairment loss. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit. Any impairment loss of a revalued non-cash-generating
asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.

The entity has adopted the standard for the first
time in the 2013 financial statements with no
material impact.
The impact of the standard is not material.

GRAP 26: Impairment of
cash-generating assets

Cash-generating assets are those assets held by
an entity with the primary objective of generating a
commercial return. When an asset is deployed in
a manner consistent with that adopted by a profitorientated entity, it generates a commercial return.
When the carrying amount of a cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable amount, it
is impaired.
An entity assesses at each reporting date
whether there is any indication that a cashgenerating asset may be impaired. If any
such indication exists, an entity estimates the
recoverable amount of the asset. When estimating the value in use of an asset, an entity
estimates the future cash inflows and outflows
to be derived from continuing use of the asset and from its ultimate disposal and an entity
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applies the appropriate discount rate to those
future cash flows.
If the recoverable amount of a cash-generating asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. This reduction is an impairment loss. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit. Any impairment loss of a revalued
cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation
decrease.
If there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated
for the individual asset. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, an entity determines the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs (the asset’s cash-generating unit).
If an active market exists for the output produced
by an asset or group of assets, that asset or group
of assets is identified as a cash-generating unit,
even if some or all of the output is used internally.
If the cash inflows generated by any asset or cashgenerating unit are affected by internal transfer
pricing, an entity use Management’s best estimate
of future price(s) that could be achieved in arm’s
length transactions in estimating:
• the future cash inflows used to determine the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use;
and
• the future cash outflows used to determine the
value in use of any other assets or cash-generating units that are affected by the internal
transfer pricing.
Cash-generating units are identified consistently
from period to period for the same asset or types
of assets, unless a change is justified.
An impairment loss is recognised for a cashgenerating unit if the recoverable amount of the
unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit.
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The impairment is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the cash-generating assets of
the unit on a pro rata basis, based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. These
reductions in carrying amounts are treated as
impairment losses on individual assets.
Where a non-cash-generating asset contributes
to a cash-generating unit, a proportion of the
carrying amount of that noncash-generating asset
is allocated to the carrying amount of the cashgenerating unit prior to estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit.
An entity assess at each reporting date whether
there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a cash-generating asset may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
any such indication exists, an entity estimates the
recoverable amount of that asset.
A reversal of an impairment loss for a cashgenerating asset is recognised immediately in
surplus or deficit. Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued cash-generating asset is
treated as a revaluation increase.
The effective date of the standard is for years
beginning on or after 01 April 2012.
The entity has adopted the standard for the first
time in the 2013 financial statements.
The impact of the standard is not material.

GRAP 104: Financial Instruments
The standard prescribes recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure requirements
for financial instruments. Financial instruments
are defined as those contracts that results in
a financial asset in one entity and a financial liability or residual interest in another entity. A key
distinguishing factor between financial assets and
financial liabilities and other assets and liabilities,

notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 march 2013
is that they are settled in cash or by exchanging financial instruments rather than through the
provision of goods or services.
In determining whether a financial instrument is a
financial asset, financial liability or a residual interest, an entity considers the substance of the contract and not just the legal form.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
recognised at fair value. Where an entity subsequently measures financial assets and financial
liabilities at amortised cost or cost, transactions
costs are included in the cost of the asset or liability.
The transaction price usually equals the fair value
at initial recognition, except in certain circumstances, for example, where interest free credit is granted or where credit is granted at a below market
rate of interest.
Short-term receivables and payables are not
discounted where the initial credit period granted
or received is consistent with terms used in the
public sector, either through established practices
or legislation.
Concessionary loans are loans either received
by, or granted to, another entity on concessionary terms, e.g. at low interest rates and flexible repayment terms. On initial recognition, the
fair value of a concessionary loan is the present
value of the agreed contractual cash flows, discounted using a market related rate of interest
for a similar transaction. The difference between
the proceeds either received or paid and the present value of the contractual cash flows is accounted for as non-exchange revenue by the recipient of a concessionary loan in accordance with
Standard of GRAP on Revenue from
Non-exchange Revenue Transactions (Taxes
and Transfers), and using the Framework for the
Preparation and Presentation of Financial

Statements (usually as an expense) by the
grantor of the loan.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are
subsequently measured either at fair value or,
amortised cost or cost. An entity measures a
financial instrument at fair value if it is:
• a derivative;
• a combined instrument designated at fair
value, i.e. an instrument that includes a
derivative and a non-derivative;
• host contract;
• held-for-trading;
• a non-derivative instrument with fixed or determinable payments that is designated at initial
recognition to be measured at fair value;
• an investment in a residual interest for which
fair value can be measured reliably; and
• other instruments that do not meet the
definition of financial instruments at amortised
cost or cost.
Derivatives are measured at fair value. Combined instruments that include a derivative and
non-derivative host contract are accounted for
as follows:
• Where an embedded derivative is included in
a host contract which is a financial instrument
within the scope of this Standard, an entity can
designate the entire contract to be measured
at fair value or, it can account for the host contract and embedded derivative separately using GRAP 104. An entity is however required to
measure the entire instrument at fair value if the
fair value of the derivative cannot be measured
reliably.
• Where the host contract is not a financial
instrument within the scope of this Standard,
the host contract and embedded derivative are
accounted for separately using GRAP 104 and
the relevant Standard of GRAP.
Financial assets and financial liabilities that are
non-derivative instruments with fixed or determi-
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nable payments, for example deposits with banks,
receivables and payables, are measured at amortised cost. At initial recognition, an entity can however designate such an instrument to be measured
at fair value.
An entity can only measure investments in
residual interests at cost where the fair value of the
interest cannot be determined reliably.
Once an entity has classified a financial asset or
a financial liability either at fair value or amortised
cost or cost, it is only allowed to reclassify such
instruments in limited instances.
An entity derecognises a financial asset, or the
specifically identified cash flows of an asset, when:
• the cash flows from the asset expire, are settled
or waived;
• significant risks and rewards are transferred to
another party; or
• despite having retained significant risks and rewards, an entity has transferred control of the
asset to another entity.
An entity derecognises a financial liability when
the obligation is extinguished. Exchanges of debt
instruments between a borrower and a lender are
treated as the extinguishment of an existing liability
and the recognition of a new financial liability.
Where an entity modifies the term of an existing financial liability, it is also treated as the
extinguishment of an existing liability and the recognition of a new liability.
An entity cannot offset financial assets and financial liabilities in the statement of financial position
unless a legal right of set-off exists, and the parties
intend to settle on a net basis.
GRAP 104 requires extensive disclosures on the
significance of financial instruments for an entity’s
statement of financial position and statement of
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financial performance, as well as the nature and
extent of the risks that an entity is exposed to as
a result of its financial statements. Some disclosures, for example the disclosure of fair values for
instruments measured at amortised cost or cost
and the preparation of a sensitivity analysis, are
encouraged rather than required.
GRAP 104 does not prescribe principles for hedge
accounting. An entity is permitted to apply hedge
accounting, as long as the principles in IAS 39 are
applied.
The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2012.

The entity has adopted the standard for the first
time in the 2013 financial statements.
The adoption of this amendment has not had a
material impact on the results of the entity, but has
resulted in more disclosure than would have previously been provided in the financial statements.

2.2 Standards and
interpretations issued,
but not yet effective
The entity has not applied and adopted the following standards and interpretations, which have
been published and are mandatory for the entity’s accounting periods beginning on or after
01 April 2013 or later periods.

GRAP 25: Employee benefits

The objective of GRAP 25 is to prescribe the
accounting and disclosure for employee benefits.
The Standard requires an entity to recognise:
• a liability when an employee has provided service in exchange for employee benefits to be
paid in the future; and
• an expense when an entity consumes the economic benefits or service potential arising from
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service provided by an employee in exchange for
employee benefits.
GRAP 25 must be applied by an employer in accounting for all employee benefits, except share
based payment transactions.
The Standard states the recognition, measurement
and disclosure requirements of:
• Short-term employee benefits;
- All short-term employee benefits;
- Short-term compensated absences;
- Bonus, incentive and performance related
payments;
• Post-employment benefits: Defined contribution
plans;
• Other long-term employee benefits; and
• Termination benefits.
The Standard states Post-employment benefits:
Distinction between defined contribution plans and
defined benefit plans:
• Multi-employer plans;
• Defined benefit plans where the participating entities are under common control;
• State plans;
• Composite social security programmes;
• Insured benefits.
The Standard states, for Post-employment benefits:
Defined benefit plans, the following requirements:
• Recognition and measurement;
• Presentation;
• Disclosure;
• Accounting for the constructive obligation;
• Statement of financial position;
• Asset recognition ceiling;
• Asset recognition ceiling: When a minimum
funding requirement may give rise to a liability;
and
• Statement of financial performance.
The Standard prescribes recognition and measurement for:

• Present value of defined benefit obligations and
current service cost:
- Actuarial valuation method;
- Attributing benefits to periods of service;
- Actuarial assumptions;
- Actuarial assumptions: Discount rate;
- Actuarial assumptions: Salaries, benefits
		 and medical costs;
- Actuarial gains and losses; and
- Past service cost.
• Plan assets:
- Fair value of plan assets;
- Reimbursements; and
- Return on plan assets.
The Standard also deals with entity combinations
and curtailments and settlements.
The effective date of the Standard is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2013.
The entity expects to adopt the Standard for the first
time in the 2013 financial statements.
It is unlikely that the Standard will have a material
impact on the entity’s financial statements.

GRAP 20: Related parties

The objective of this Standard is to ensure that a
reporting entity’s financial statements contain the
disclosures necessary to draw attention to the
possibility that its financial position and surplus or
deficit may have been affected by the existence of
related parties and by transactions and outstanding
balances with such parties.
An entity that prepares and presents financial statements under the accrual basis of accounting (in this
standard referred to as the reporting entity) shall
apply this standard in:
• identifying related party relationships and transactions;
• identifying outstanding balances, including commitments, between an entity and its
related parties;
• identifying the circumstances in which disclosure

67

notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 march 2013
of the items in (a) and (b) is required; and
• determining the disclosures to be made about
those items.
This standard requires disclosure of related
party relationships, transactions and outstanding
balances, including commitments, in the consolidated and separate financial statements of the
reporting entity in accordance with the Standard
of GRAP on Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements. This standard also applies to individual financial statements.
Disclosure of related party transactions, outstanding balances, including commitments, and relationships with related parties may affect users’
assessments of the financial position and performance of the reporting entity and its ability to
deliver agreed services, including assessments of
the risks and opportunities facing the entity.

This disclosure also ensures that the reporting entity is transparent about its dealings with
related parties.
The standard states that a related party is a person or an entity with the ability to control or jointly
control the other party, or exercise significant
influence over the other party, or vice versa, or an
entity that is subject to common control, or joint
control.
As a minimum, the following are regarded as
related parties of the reporting entity:
• A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the reporting entity if that
person:
- has control or joint control over the reporting
entity;
- significant influence over the reporting
entity;
- is a member of the management of the
entity or its controlling entity.
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• An entity is related to the reporting entity if any
of the following conditions apply:
- the entity is a member of the same economic entity (which means that each controlling
entity, controlled entity and fellow controlled
entity is related to the others);
- one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of an economic entity
of which the other entity is a member);
- both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party;
- one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;
- the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the entity or an entity related to the entity.
If the reporting entity is itself such a plan,
the sponsoring employers are related to the
entity;
- the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a); and
- a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over that entity or is a member of
the management of that entity (or its controlling entity).
The standard furthermore states that related
party transaction is a transfer of resources,
services or obligations between the reporting
entity and a related party, regardless of whether a
price is charged.
The standard elaborates on the definitions and
identification of:
• close member of the family of a person;
• management;
• related parties;
• remuneration; and
• significant influence
The standard sets out the requirements, inter alia,
for the disclosure of:
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• control;
• related party transactions; and
• remuneration of management
This Standard has been approved by the Board
but its effective date has not yet been determined
by the Minister of Finance.
The adoption of this standard is not expected to
impact on the results of the entity, but may result
in more disclosure than is currently provided in the
financial statements.

2.3 Standards and
interpretations not yet
effective or relevant
The following standards and interpretations
have been published and are mandatory for the
entity’s accounting periods beginning on or after
01 April 2013 or later periods but are not relevant
to its operations:

GRAP 18: Segment Reporting

Segments are identified by the way in which
information is reported to Management, both for
purposes of assessing performance and making decisions about how future resources will be
allocated to the various activities undertaken by
the entity. The major classifications of activities
identified in budget documentation will usually reflect the segments for which an entity reports information to Management.
Segment information is either presented based
on service or geographical segments. Service segments relate to a distinguishable component of an entity that provides specific outputs or achieves particular operating objectives
that are in line with the entity’s overall mission.
Geographical segments relate to specific outputs generated, or particular objectives achieved,
by an entity within a particular region.

This Standard has been approved by the Board
but its effective date has not yet been determinedby the Minister of Finance. The effective date indicated is a provisional date and could change depending on the decision of the Minister of Finance.
Directive 2 - Transitional provisions for public
entities, municipal entities and constitutional
institutions, states that no comparative segment information need to be presented on initial
adoption of this Standard.
Directive 3 - Transitional provisions for high
capacity municipalities states that no comparative segment information need to be presented on
initial adoption of the Standard. Where items have
no been recognised as a result of transitional provisions under the Standard of GRAP on Property,
Plant and Equipment, recognition requirements of
this Standard would not apply to such items until
the transitional provision in that Standard expires.
Directive 4 – Transitional provisions for medium
and low capacity municipalities states that no
comparative segment information need to be
presented on initial adoption of the Standard.
Where items have not been recognised as a
result of transitional provisions un the Standard of
GRAP on Property, Plant and Equipment and the
Standard of GRAP on Agriculture, the recognition
requirements of the Standard would not apply to
such items until the transitional provision in that
standard expires.
This Standard has been approved by the Board
but its effective date has not yet been determined
by the Minister of Finance.
The entity does not envisage the adoption of the
Standard until such time as it becomes applicable
to the entity’s operations.
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GRAP 103: Heritage Assets

GRAP 103 defines heritage assets as assets
which have a cultural, environmental, historical,
natural, scientific, technological or artistic significance and are held indefinitely for the benefit of
present and future generations.
Certain heritage assets are described as inalienable items, thus assets which are retained indefinitely and cannot be disposed of without consent
as required by law or otherwise.
A heritage asset should be recognised as an asset
only if:
• it is probable that future economic benefits or
service potential associated with the asset will
to the entity; and
• the cost of fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.
The standard required judgment in applying
the initial recognition criteria to the specific
circumstances surrounding the entity and the
assets.
GRAP 103 states that a heritage asset should
be measured at its cost unless it is acquired
through a non-exchange transaction which should
then be measured at its fair value as at the date
of acquisition.
In terms of the Standard, an entity has a choice
between the cost and revaluation model as
accounting policy for subsequent recognition and
should apply the chosen policy to an entire class
of heritage assets.
The cost model requires a class of heritage assets to be carried at its cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.
The revaluation model required a class of heritage assets to be carried at its fair value at the
date of the revaluation less any subsequent
impairment losses. The Standard also states that
a restriction on the disposal of a heritage asset
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does not preclude the entity from determining
the fair value.
GRAP 103 prescribes that when determining the
fair value of a heritage asset that has more than
one purpose, the fair value should reflect both the
asset’s heritage value and the value obtained from
its use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes.
If a heritage asset’s carrying amount is increased
as a result of a revaluation, the increase should be
credited directly to a revaluation surplus. However,
the increase should be recognised in surplus or
deficit to the extent that it reverses a revaluation
decrease of the same heritage asset previously
recognised in surplus or deficit. If a heritage asset’s carrying amount is decreased as a result of a
revaluation, the decrease should be recognised in
surplus or deficit.
However, the decrease should be debited directly
to a revaluation surplus to the extent of any credit
balance existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of that heritage asset.
GRAP 103 states that a heritage asset should
not be depreciated but an entity should assess at
each reporting date whether there is an indication
that it may be impaired.

In terms of the Standard, compensation from third
parties for heritage assets that have been impaired, lost or given up, should be included in surplus or deficit when the compensation becomes
receivable.
For a transfer from heritage assets carried at a revalued amount to property, plant and equipment,
investment property, inventories or intangible assets, the asset’s deemed cost for subsequent accounting should be its revalued amount at the date
of transfer. The entity should treat any difference
at that date between the carrying amount of the
heritage asset and its fair value in the same way
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as a revaluation in accordance with this Standard.
If an item of property, plant and equipment or an
intangible asset carried at a revalued amount, or
investment property carried at fair value is reclassified as a heritage asset carried at a revalued
amount, the entity applies the applicable Standard
of GRAP to that asset up to the date of change.
The entity treats any difference at that date between the carrying amount of the asset and its fair
value in accordance with the applicable Standard
of GRAP relating to that asset. For a transfer from
investment property carried at fair value, or inventories to heritage assets at a revalued amount, any
difference between the fair value of the asset at
that date and its previous carrying amount should
be recognised in surplus or deficit.
The carrying amount of a heritage asset should be
derecognised:
• on disposal, or
• when no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use
or disposal.
The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of
a heritage asset should be determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any,
and the carrying amount of the heritage asset.
Such difference is recognised in surplus or deficit
when the heritage asset is derecognised.
The effective date of the Standard is for years
beginning on or after 01 April 2012.
The entity does not envisage the adoption of the
Standard until such time as it becomes applicable
to the entity’s operations.

GRAP 105: Transfers of
functions between entities
under common control

The objective of this Standard is to establish accounting principles for the acquirer and transferor
in a transfer of functions between entities under
common control. It requires an acquirer and a
transferor that prepares and presents financial
statements under the accrual basis of accounting
to apply this Standard to a transaction or event

that meets the definition of a transfer of functions. It includes a diagram and requires that entities consider the diagram in determining whether
this Standard should be applied in accounting for
a transaction or event that involves a transfer of
functions or merger.
It furthermore covers Definitions, Identifying the
acquirer and transferor, Determining the transfer
date, Assets acquired or transferred and liabilities
assumed or relinquished, Accounting by the acquirer and transferor, Disclosure, Transitional
provisions as well as the Effective date of the
Standard.
The effective date of the Standard is for years
beginning on or after 01 April 2014.
The entity expects to adopt the Standard for the
first time in the 2014 financial statements.
It is unlikely that the amendment will have a
material impact on the entity’s financial
statements.

GRAP 106: Transfers of
functions between entities not
under common control

The objective of this Standard is to establish accounting principles for the acquirer in a transfer
of functions between entities not under common
control. It requires an entity that prepares and presents financial statements under the accrual basis
of accounting to apply this Standard to a transaction or other event that meets the definition of a
transfer of functions. It includes a diagram and requires that entities consider the diagram in determining whether this Standard should be applied in
accounting for a transaction or event that involves
a transfer of functions or merger.
It furthermore covers Definitions, Identifying a
transfer of functions between entities not under
common control, The acquisition method, Recognising and measuring the difference between the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed and the
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consideration transferred, Measurement period,
Determining what is part of a transfer of functions,
Subsequent measurement and accounting, Disclosure, Transitional provisions as well as the Effective date of the Standard.
The effective date of the Standard is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2014.
The entity does not envisage the adoption of
the Standard until such time as it becomes
applicable to the entity’s operations.
It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the entity’s financial statements.

GRAP 107: Mergers

The objective of this Standard is to establish
accounting principles for the acquirer in a
transfer of functions between entities not under common control. It requires an entity that
prepares and presents financial statements under
the accrual basis of accounting to apply this Standard to a transaction or other event that meets the
definition of a transfer of functions. It includes a
diagram and requires that entities consider the
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diagram in determining whether this Standard
should be applied in accounting for a transaction or event that involves a transfer of functions
or merger.
It furthermore covers Definitions, Identifying a
transfer of functions between entities not under common control, The acquisition method,
Recognising and measuring the difference
between the assets acquired and liabilities assumed and the consideration transferred,
Measurement period, Determining what is part
of a transfer of functions, Subsequent measurement and accounting, Disclosure, Transitional provisions as well as the Effective date of
the Standard.
The effective date of the Standard is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2014.
The entity does not envisage the adoption of the
Standard until such time as it becomes applicable
to the entity’s operations.
It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the entity’s financial statements.
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2013
R’000

2012
R’000

3. Inventories
Consumable stores

213

287

Opening Balance

287

283

Additions for the year

137

306

(211)

(302)

213

287

Trade debtors

29

-

Employee costs in advance

(1)

-

-

3

343

343

60

72

431

418

1

-

175

142

24,996

19,117

25,172

19,259

Utilised for the year

4. Receivables from exchange transactions

Prepaid expenses
Deposits
Interest income accrued

5. cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consists of:
Cash on hand
Bank balances
Short-term deposists

There are no restrictions on cash held with banks.
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6. property, plant and equipment

Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles

2013

2012

COST/
VALUATION

ACCUMULATED
DEPRECIATION
AND
ACCUMULATED
IMPAIRMENT

ACCUMULATED
DEPRECIATION
AND
ACCUMULATED
IMPAIRMENT

CARRYING
VALUE

1,525

(577)

948

(453)

885

CARRYING
COST/
VALUE
VALUATION

1,338

562

(195)

367

562

(118)

444

Office equipment

1,172

(353)

819

1,419

(586)

833

IT equipment

1,645

(1,128)

517

1,656

(976)

680

830

(404)

426

589

(257)

332

5,734

(2,657)

3,077

5,564

(2,390)

3,174

Leasehold improvements
Total

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment – 2013
OPENING BALANCE

ADDITIONS

DISPOSALS

DEPRECIATION

TOTAL

Furniture and fixtures

885

199

-

(136)

948

Motor vehicles

444

-

-

(77)

367

Office equipment

833

386

(136)

(264)

819

IT equipment

680

339

(58)

(444)

517

Leasehold improvements

332

241

-

(147)

426

3,174

1,165

(194)

(1,068)

3,077

DISPOSALS

DEPRECIATION

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment – 2012
OPENING BALANCE

Furniture and fixtures

TOTAL

897

108

-

(120)

885

72

411

-

(39)

444

Office equipment

416

607

(2)

(188)

833

IT equipment

634

475

(4)

(425)

680

Leasehold improvements

450

-

-

(118)

332

2,469

1,601

(6)

(890)

3,174

Motor vehicles
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7. Intangible assets

Cost/
Valuation
Computer software

2013

2012

Accumulated
depreciation
and
accumulated
impairment

Accumulated
depreciation
and
accumulated
impairment

1,190

Carrying
value

Cost/
Valuation

825

943

(365)

Carrying
value

(412)

531

Reconciliation of intangible assets – 2013
Opening balance

531

Computer software

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation

(4)

(121)

419

Total

825

Reconciliation of intangible assets – 2012
OPENING BALANCE

ADDITIONS

334

Computer software

AMORTISATION

316

TOTAL

(119)

531

8. Payables from exchange transactions
2013
R’000
892

Payables

2012
R’000
1,246

9. provisions
Reconciliation of provisions – 2013
OPENING BALANCE

ADDITIONS

UTILISED DURING THE YEAR

TOTAL

Leave pay

834

1,274

(1,228)

880

Performance bonuses

671

244

(671)

244

1,505

1,518

(1,899)

1,124

Reconciliation of provisions – 2012
OPENING BALANCE

ADDITIONS

UTILISED DURING THE YEAR

TOTAL

Leave pay

735

870

(771)

834

Performance bonuses

735

671

(735)

671

1,470

1,541

(1,506)

1,505
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2013
R’000

2012
R’000

10. government grants
National Department of Cooperative Governance and
Traditional Affairs
Local Government SETA

40,362

38,482

35

-

40,397

38,482

9

18

11. revenue
Sale of goods
Other exchange revenue
Interest received – investment
Government grants and subsidies
Other non-exchange revenue

50

-

602

623

40,397

38,482

265

-

41,323

39,123

9

18

50

-

602

623

661

641

40,397

38,482

265

-

40,662

38,482

The amount included in revenue arising from
exchanges of goods or services are as follows:
Sale of goods
Other exchange revenue
Interest received – investment

The amount included in revenue arising from
non-exchange transactions is as follows:
Transfer revenue
Government grants and subsidies
Other non-exchange revenue
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2013
R’000

2012
R’000

12. employee benefit costs
Basic

7,037

6,026

Other non pensionable allowance

3,151

2,892

Temporary staff allowance

672

158

Leave payments

290

295

Overtime payments

174

237

Bonus

(57)

586

1,039

990

UIF

45

36

SDL

126

117

Insurance cover

220

203

Travel, motor car, accommodation, subsistence and other allowances

170

222

Full time member’s emoluments

Leave expenses

46

98

171

201

13,084

12,061

819

797

136

120

77

39

Office equipment

264

188

Computer equipment

443

425

Leasehold improvements

147

118

Computer software

123

119

1,190

1,009

Capacity assessment

1,659

3,145

Consulting fees

1,621

1,798

3,280

4,943

Other salary related costs

13. Audit fees
Audit fees

14. depreciation and amortisation
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles

15. project expenses
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2013
R’000

2012
R’000

16. other operating expenses
License renewal
Travel and accommodation
Courier and delivery charges
Data acquisitions
Consumables

58

787

2,738

2,691

48

129

304

469

70

181

Inventory write-off

-

31

Rental of building

2,311

2,311

224

208

16

26

5,769

6,833

338

446

20

23

Consulting and professional fees

170

315

Insurance

259

203

Conferences and seminars

316

342

2,173

2,002

Printing and photocopying

547

422

Telephone and fax

271

239

Training

Rental of plant, machinery and equipment
Repairs and maintenance

17. administrative expenses
Advertising
Bank charges

Publications, notices and gazettes

150

241

Assets expensed

22

11

Internal audit fees

496

700

2,606

2,202

223

152

2,462

2,870

10,053

10,168

Members allowance
Stationery
Other expenses
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2013
R’000

2012
R’000

18. loss disposal of assets
Proceeds from insurance

42

4

Net book value of assets

(198)

(5)

(156)

(1)

602

623

6,972

3,311

1,190

1,009

156

1

Movements in operating lease assets and accruals

(189)

38

Movements in provisions

(381)

9

74

(4)

(13)

31

(357)

396

7,452

4,791

19. Investment revenue
Interest revenue
Bank

20. cash generated from operations
Surplus
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Loss on sale of assets

Changes in working capital:
Inventories
Receivables from exchange transactions
Payables from exchange transactions
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2013
R’000

2012
R’000

21. commitments
21.1 Operating lease – the Board as lessee
Minimum lease payments due
- within one year

2,750

2,500

231

2,980

2,981

5,480

- in second to fifth year inclusive

The Board leases its office premises from a commercial property provider for a period of 5 years, effective from 1 May 2009. Lease payments escalate by 10% annually and are payable monthly in advance.
The lease agreement is renewable for a further 5 years on the same terms as the initial lease. Thereafter further renewals are not allowed. Upon termination of the lease any improvements made to the
premises by the entity shall belong to the lessor. The Board has not formally considered exercising its
right of renewal.
21.2 Other commitments
- Unrecognised capital commitments

-

931

- Unrecognised contractual commitments

4,450

3,657

Total future commitments

4,450

4,588

22. related parties
executive • 2013

Remuneration

Mr LJ Mahlangu (Chairperson)

1,068

1,068

Ms GC Gumbi-Masilela (CEO) (Appointed 01 August 2012)

979

979

Mr DKN Ligege (CFO) (Appointed 01 January 2013)

273

273

Ms MI Mathato (CFO) (Resigned 31 August 2012)

453

453

2,773

2,773

Remuneration

Performance
Bonus

Mr LJ Mahlangu (Chairperson)

990

-

990

Mr RH Monare (CEO)
(Contract ended 31 January 2012)

942

72

1,014

Ms MI Mathato (CFO) (Resigned 31 August 2012)

466

-

466

2,398

72

2,470

Executive • 2012
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22. related parties (CONTINUE)

non-Executive • 2013
Ms N Gwayi (Deputy Chairperson)
Prof NC Steytler

Members’
allowances

other
additional
duties

Total

630

-

630

68

-

68

Khosi TJ Ramovha

250

-

250

Mr LD Tsotetsi

189

255

444

Ms SGS Castle

182

-

182

Ms WL Ovens

155

-

155

Ms LK John

64

-

64

Mr AM Adam

160

-

160

Mr SM Radebe (Chairperson: Audit and
Risk Committee)

369

284

653

2,067

539

2,606

non-Executive • 2012
Ms N Gwayi (Deputy Chairperson)

Members’
allowances

other
additional
duties

Total

397

-

397

62

-

62

Khosi TJ Ramovha

180

-

180

Mr LD Tsotetsi

221

-

221

Ms SGS Castle

221

-

221

Ms WL Ovens

192

-

192

Ms LK John

200

-

200

Mr AM Adam

160

-

160

Mr SM Radebe (Chairperson: Audit and
Risk Committee)

337

232

569

1,970

232

2,202

Prof NC Steytler

81

notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 march 2013
22. related parties (continue)
Remuneration of Board members is determined by the Minister of Cooperative Governance and
Traditional Affairs in accordance with Treasury Regulations 20.2 issued in term of the PFMA.
Remuneration of Management is determined by the Board.
Remuneration of independent member(s) of the Audit and Risk Committee is determined by the Board
in accordance with Treasury Regulations 3.1.6, after taking into account tariffs determined by the South
African Institute of Chartered Accountants and the Auditor-General, where applicable.

23. change in estimateS
Property, plant and equipment
Changes in the estimated useful lives of some items of property, plant and equipment has resulted in
the following changes in depreciation for the year:

2013
R’000

2012
R’000

- According to intial estimated useful life

(98)

(58)

- According to re-estimated useful life

129

28

31

(30)

24. prior period errors
The entity’s payables from exchange transactions in 2011/12 were overstated due to a duplication of
accruals in that period. The error has been corrected retrospectively and comparative figures have
been appropriately restated. The effect of the correction on the results for 2011/12 is as follows:
Statement of financial position
Decrease in payables from exchange transactions

-

(8)

Increase in accumulated surplus (Net Assets)

-

8

Decrease in administrative expenses

-

(8)

Increase in surplus for the period

-

8

Increase in accumulated surplus

-

8

Adjustments to balance at year end

-

8

Statement of financial performance

Statement of changes in net assets
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25. risk management
Financial risk management
The entity’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair
value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabilities. Management regularly reviews the Board’s going concern. This includes
reviewing the effectiveness of working capital management and budgetary control.
The following table indicates the maturity analysis for financial liabilities showing the remaining earliest
contractual maturities.

2013
Payables from exchange transactions

Carrying amount

Due within
1 year

Due between
1 and 5 years

854

854

-

1,246

1,246

-

2012
Payables from exchange transactions

Credit risk
Credit risk consists mainly of cash depositis, cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and
trade debtors. The entity only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits
exposure to any counter-party.

2013
R’000

2012
R’000

Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables from exchange transactions

25,271

19,259

402

418

26. going concern
The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the
realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in
the ordinary course of business.
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27. irregular expenditure
The Board incurred irregular expenditure amounting to R2 657 000.
The entity did not suffer any loss since all service providers fulfilled their contractual obligations.

2013
R’000

2012
R’000

Opening balance

205

726

Add: Irregular expenditure – prior year

603

-

Add: Irregular expenditure – current year
Less: Amounts condoned

1,849

628

(2,657)

(1,149)

-

205

Details of irregular expenditure condoned

Condoned by
(condoning
authority)

Incident 1: Insurance for assets awarded to
contractor who was not possession of a valid
tax clearance certificate.

National Treasury

205

Incident 2: Extension of cleaning services
contract without justifiable reasons.

Accounting authority

245

Incident 3: ICT equipment: contract awarded
to supplier who did not score the highest
points, without supporting evidence for
reasons to do so.

Accounting authority

67

Incident 4: Eighteen contracts and quotations
awarded without obtaining three quotations.

Accounting authority

2,140
2,657
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